
           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  
  
  
  

CCoommmmiitttteeee  ooff  tthhee  WWhhoollee  ––  66::3300  pp..mm..    
RReegguullaarr  CCiittyy  CCoouunncciill  MMeeeettiinngg  ––  77::0000  pp..mm..  

 
  

  MMAAYYOORR                CCIITTYY  CCLLEERRKK 
        Bryce Ward 888-4444      Kathy Weber, MMC  488-8583  
 
  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEMMBBEERRSS               

Michael Welch-  Mayor Pro Tem    488-5834 
Thomas McGhee- Deputy Mayor Pro Tem        455-0010 
Preston Smith – Alt. Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 488-8824 
Elizabeth Holm     488-6125 
Sharron Hunter       978-5591 
Kevin McCarthy    590-0800 
   

  
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
  
2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag  - girl scout troop 224 

 
3. Invocation   

  
4. Approval of the Agenda 

 
5. Approval of the Minutes  

  
6. Communications from the Mayor 

 
7.   Council Member Questions of the Mayor 
 
8.   Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City Clerk  
   
9.   Ongoing Projects Report 

CCIITTYY  OOFF  NNOORRTTHH  PPOOLLEE  

AAllaasskkaa  
 

 

 
RREEGGUULLAARR  CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEEETTIINNGG  

TTuueessddaayy,,  FFeebbrruuaarryy  1177,,  22001155  
 
   
 

 
 

  
  
  
  



 

10. Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 
 
11. Old Business 

a. Ordinance 15-01, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to Amend Chapter 8.04 Nuisances 
and Add Section 8.04.05 to prohibit the extraction of marijuana oils within city limits 
 

b. Ordinance 15-02, an ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend title 12 Streets, Sidewalks 
and Public Places by adding Chapter 03 Marijuana use in public places, to regulate the consumption of 
marijuana in a public place 

 
12.  New Business 

a. Approval of SDEU Dodge Pickup sale 
 

b. Request from North Pole Economic Development Corporation for  quarter 2014 Bed Tax 
 

c. Request to Sign an Agreement with Alasconnect for IT Services & Data Storage. 
 

d. Request to Purchase Detective Vehicle for $15,000 using Police Fleet Fund. 
 

e. Committee Appointments. 
 

f. Ordinance 15-03, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to amend Title 2, Administration and 
personnel, Chapter 2.36.470 Pay. 
 

g. Ordinance 15-04, An Ordinance Requesting the Purchase of a Vehicle for Detective/Crime Scene 
Operations Using Justice Funds. 

 
13.  Council Comments 
 
14.  Adjournment 
 
The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing impaired 
individuals.  The City does require at least 48 hours’ notice to arrange for this service.  All such requests are 
subject to the availability of an interpreter.  All City Council meetings are recorded on CD.  These CD’s are 
available for listening or duplication at the City Clerk’s Office during regular business hours, Monday 
through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. or can be purchased for $5.00 per CD. The City Clerk’s Office is 
located in City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska.  



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   1 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 

      Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 

 

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, February 2, 2015 in the 

Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Ward called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, February 2, 2015 to order at 

7:00 p.m. 

 

There were present:     Absent/Excused 

Ms. Holm       

Ms. Hunter       

Mr. McCarthy           

Mr. McGhee       

Mr. Smith       

Mr. Welch         

Mayor Ward  

 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Ward called the regularly scheduled meeting of the North Pole City Council to order on 

Monday, February 2, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

     

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 

Led by Mayor Ward 

 

INVOCATION  
Invocation was given by Ms. Holm 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the Agenda of February 2, 2015 

 

Seconded by Mr. Smith 

 

Discussion  

None 

 

Mr. Welch moved to pull from the agenda the following items: 

 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   2 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

New Business 

a. Approval of SDEU Dodge Pickup sale. 

 

Seconded by Mr. McGhee 

 

On the Amendment 

Yes:  7 - Holm, McGhee, Welch, McCarthy, Smith, Hunter, Ward 

No:  0-  

Absent:  0 

 

On the main motion as amended 

PASSED 

Yes:  7 - Holm, McGhee, Welch, McCarthy, Smith, Hunter, Ward 

No:  0-  

Absent:  0 

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Mr. Welch moved to Approve the minutes of January 20, 2014.  

 

Seconded by Mr. McGhee 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

PASSED 

Yes:  7 - Holm, McGhee, Welch, McCarthy, Smith, Hunter, Ward 

No:  0-  

Absent:  0 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

I attended the second small group discussion on dispatch last week.  The meeting was productive 

in the sense that we all have nailed down a methodology.  The group agreed to meet again in the 

next 10 days to decide on a formula to bring to the large group.  We also briefly discussed the 

governance of the Dispatch Center and how it could be improved upon.  We should have a 

schedule that will outline basic services and enhanced services so that members can “shop” for 

the best rate to fulfil the needs of their agencies.       

 

I will be traveling to Juneau with the Fairbanks Chamber’s annual legislative fly-in tomorrow.  

The trip will be from February 3
rd

 to the 5
th

 and will be action packed.  I look forward to 

speaking to our delegation and other legislators.   



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   3 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

 

The assembly last week was filled with testimony on the concerns of citizens.  Concern was 

voiced in regards to the right to clean air and the right to heat your home.  I was at the meeting 

until after 11:00 p.m. and testimony was not done yet.  The presiding officer informed the public 

that they would stay until all had a chance to comment and that they would not make any 

decision on Thursday.  The official discussion and vote will take place on February 12
th 

and there 

are already several amendments.   

 

I have received a response from the DOT regarding the Richardson.  The State is asking if we are 

interested in the changes taking place this summer to the Richardson Highway.  I am assuming 

the intent is that it comes sooner than later.  Please let me know if the council has a preference.   

 

I will be out of the office for at least a week when my wife gives birth to our firstborn.  I will be 

making arrangements for the office in my absence.  I will inform the council as soon as my son is 

born for the duration I will be absent. 

  
 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR 

Mr. McGhee asked I copies of the workshop on marijuana would be made available for council 

members. 

 

Mayor Ward stated that the clerk would make copies available for those who wanted. 

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 

REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 

 

Fire Department, Chief Lane 

 None 

Finance, Tricia Fogarty 

    

 

Police Department, Chief Dutra 

 Our legislative grant for our HVAC is now complete.  We have an inspector coming out 

on Wednesday to do the final and we will be done with heating and ventilation upgrades.  

Hope to secure financing for cooling and get that project started soon. 

 Please remind everyone about our Coffee with a Cop on Saturday at McDonalds.  We 

will be there between 0900-1000 hours.  This is a time to come and chat about anything I 

will be there along with Sgt. Binkley and we are excited to meet with the citizens.  I 

invite you to come join us.  We will pay for the coffee. 



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   4 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

 We just sponsored a field training class here at city hall last week.  I want to thank the 

staff at city hall for putting up with all the police officers.  Sponsoring this class saved us 

the money of having to send officers out for the training.  It also helps to bring in lots of 

people to eat at our local establishments. 

 We are also hosting a course in the next few months called Blue Courage.  Should be 

well attended. 

 Officer Missimer just returned from Sitka where he attended the Municipal Law 

enforcement academy.  Passed with flying colors.  This class is required for officers who 

need state law and procedural updates. 

 I attended the Air Force Community Partnership Program Initial planning meeting.  Well 

attended by a lot of organizations.  Looking for ways to do better collaboration between 

Air Force and local groups both private and public. 

 Stats – from 2014 – a few issues but most of the trends I am disturbed about I had already 

briefed the council during 2014. 

Mr. Welch asked about the speed limit increase to 65 mph and what his thoughts were on it. 

Mr. Smith  asked about adding any extra public service activities for police. 

 

Director of City Services, Bill Butler  

Natural Gas Update: February 2, 2015 

IGU has not had a board meeting since Governor Walker announced the signature of a letter of 

intent to buy Fairbanks Natural Gas. The IGU board of directors must satisfy the same open 

meeting laws as the City Council so there have been no on-line discussions among board 

members about this development. There will be an IGU board meeting on Tuesday, February 3.  

 

Based upon newspaper articles, the estimated $52 million to purchase Fairbanks Natural Gas will 

come from AIDEA funds, not funding approved in Senate Bill 23. Senate Bill 23 allocated $303 

million in loans, grants and credits to fund a natural gas trucking project from the North Slope. 

To use Senate Bill 23 funding for another purpose—like a project to obtain gas from Cook 

Inlet—would require legislative action. (Two representative new articles are attached.) 

 

IGU’s efforts to create a gas project are going ahead uninterrupted—invitations for bids are 

scheduled to be released within a week for construction of the first gas lines, including the lines 

to be installed in the City of North Pole in summer 2015; an invitation to bid has already been 

released to begin land clearing work that must precede any construction; and design of Phase 2 

that includes a small portion of the northern parts of the City are moving forward to the 65% 

stage.  



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   5 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

 

From the City-side, I am working with DOT to see if we can share a construction inspector to 

inspect gas line installation work that will occur within the City. We are still in discussions and 

there may be issues that prevent DOT from partnering with the City for these services. The goal 

is to perform the work as inexpensively as possible. The City should not be incurring any plan 

review or inspection costs—the intention of DOT and the City is to negotiate a Reimbursable 

Services Agreement (RSA) with IGU where IGU bears the plan review and inspections costs.  

 

State agency to purchase Fairbanks natural gas utility 

Fairbanks News Miner, January 28, 2015 

By Dermot Cole Fairbanks News Miner, January 28 

 

JUNEAU -- In a step that could reshape the Fairbanks energy picture, a state agency has signed a 

letter of intent to purchase the small natural gas utility system there for $52.5 million, fueled by 

natural gas supplies that would be trucked or shipped by rail to the Interior city. 

 

The Alaska Industrial Development and Export Authority announced the proposed 

deal Wednesday and said it would start due diligence on the plan to purchase the privately held 

company that owns Fairbanks Natural Gas. 

 

Gov. Bill Walker briefed Fairbanks legislators in the state Capitol at 5 p.m. Fairbanks Rep. Steve 

Thompson, co-chairman of the House Finance Committee, said their reaction was uniformly 

positive. 

 

They discussed how a legislative appropriation for the Interior Energy Project might be reshaped 

to help finance the sale. 

 

Thompson, along with Sen. John Coghill and Reps. David Guttenberg and Scott Kawasaki said 

they didn't go into all of the details, but that the idea is to finish the deal by the fall and expand 

the current trucking operation, with the intent of using the state-owned Alaska Railroad as the 

ultimate means of transport. 

 

"I hope it works," said Thompson. "This seems to be pretty well thought-out. I think they have 

some negotiations to do yet. There is still a glimmer of hope for Fairbanks." 

 

http://www.interiorgas.com/state-agency-purchase-fairbanks-natural-gas-utility/


Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   6 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

Coghill said the governor outlined a plan under which natural gas could be shipped in containers 

on the Alaska Railroad. Coghill said it's critical that any gas purchase arrangement be for the 

long term, for energy security. 

 

In an interview after the meeting, Walker said the proposal will go a long way toward easing the 

energy problem in Fairbanks by diversifying the supply and speeding the transition to natural 

gas. Fairbanks Natural Gas has about 1,100 customers and supplies gas to Fairbanks via truck 

along the Parks Highway. 

 

"The next step will be negotiating natural gas contracts. There are a number of companies that 

are interested in selling gas," said Walker. He said the idea of shipping gas from Cook Inlet to 

Fairbanks has been percolating for a long time, but it was when the AIDEA plan for a new North 

Slope gas treatment plant faltered because of high cost in December that the initiative really 

advanced. 

“It is important that we keep our eye on the immediate goal of bringing energy relief to Interior 

Alaska," Walker said in a statement. “AIDEA’s initiative to help streamline gas distribution 

systems in the Interior is a positive development.” 

 

The purchase by AIDEA, a state-owned corporation, would end the competition that exists in 

Fairbanks between Fairbanks Natural Gas, the private utility owned largely by investors in 

Minnesota, and a municipal utility that intends to serve areas outside the city center. 

 

AIDEA Board Chairman Dana Pruhs released a statement saying the agency would  "work 

closely with the community and utilities to reduce construction and operation costs for both 

natural gas distribution systems." 

 

“This efficient approach will lead to lower cost energy for consumers," he said. FNG President 

Dan Britton was quoted as saying he looks forward to a "seamless transition." 

 

Cory Borgeson, president of Golden Valley Electric Association, said he is eager to see the 

details on how the electric utility would be able to participate. 

 

"GVEA is waiting to see what AIDEA will be proposing for a source of gas in light of the 

governor's promise not to put GVEA at risk by committing to a fuel arrangement," 

said Borgeson. 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   7 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

He said power rates for a typical household are going down by about $17 next month because of 

declining oil prices, which means that the price level at which natural gas has to be competitive 

has dropped. 

 

In 2010, when Walker was the attorney for the Alaska Gasline Port Authority, formed by 

municipal governments in Fairbanks and Valdez, the agency considered buying FNG for $64 

million, but the project did not advance, in part because of questions about the price. 

 

State to buy Fairbanks Natural Gas 

Fairbanks News Miner, January 28 

Matt Buxton  

 

JUNEAU — With the aftermath of the North Slope gas processing plant in the rearview mirror, 

the state intends to buy Fairbanks Natural Gas. 

 

In a news release issued this evening, the Alaska Industrial Development and Export Authority 

announced that with cooperation from Gov. Bill Walker it has signed a letter of intent to buy 

Pentex Alaska Natural Gas Company, LLC and its assets, which include the Fairbanks gas 

distribution company and a liquefaction plant in Point MacKenzie, for $52.5 million. 

 

“It is important that we keep our eye on the immediate goal of bringing energy relief to Interior 

Alaska,” Walker said in a news release. “AIDEA’s initiative to help streamline gas distribution 

systems in the Interior is a positive development.” 

 

Fairbanks Natural Gas has served about a thousand businesses and residences in the Interior and 

this summer began construction on new distribution lines. With its Point MacKenzie plant, the 

company already has been trucking gas in limited supplies to Fairbanks. 

 

With the processing facility in Point MacKenzie the focus on finding a source of natural gas for 

the Interior turns to Cook Inlet, said AIDEA board member Gary Wilken, a former state senator 

from Fairbanks. “The effort is to look at Cook Inlet and establish in some manner a long-term 

gas supply,” he said. 

 

The deal between the state and Pentex is expected to close sometime this summer, he said. The 

move comes after a private-public partnership between AIDEA and private project development 

company MWH fell apart at the end of the year amid rising prices and slipping timelines. The 

state had offered an extension, but MWH decided to bow out amid local opposition. 

http://www.interiorgas.com/state-buy-fairbanks-natural-gas/


Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   8 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

 

The purchase price of $52.5 million comes amid a state budget deficit of $3.5 billion and finding 

that amount of money would likely be difficult in any session. But lawmakers who attended a 

closed-door briefing with the governor said they were told it could be done with funds set aside 

in the legislation that created the Interior Energy Project in 2013. 

 

That legislation, which passed with the unanimous support of the Alaska Legislature, put 

about $330 million of loans, credits and cash grants ($57.5 million) toward the project. AIDEA 

spokesman Karsten Rodvik said between $42 million to $45 million of the cash grants remain 

depending on finalized invoices for the work on the North Slope. He added that some of the 

North Slope assets, such as a gravel pad, could be liquidated to add to the available cash. There 

are also $117 million in low-cost loans and $150 million in bonds remaining, he said. 

“They seem to think the money is available,” said Rep. Steve Thompson, a Fairbanks Republican 

who co-chairs the House Finance Committee. “They just need some legislation to switch it from 

the North Slope back in the other direction.” 

 

Thompson went on to say he was glad to see a new plan come together so quickly after the 

failure of the North Slope plant, but said there likely will be some concerns about pushing 

private companies out of the energy discussion. 

 

Pentex had attempted to sell its Point MacKenzie processing plant to Hilcorp earlier this year, 

but the sale was put on hold by the attorney general and state regulators. Some local officials in 

Fairbanks also opposed the sale. 

 

“It’s interesting that Hilcorp was going to be a private corporation wanting to buy it (the Point 

MacKenzie plant). The attorney general stepped in and now a state agency is going to buy it,” he 

said. “I think there will be some questions.” 

 

The consolidation of the Interior’s energy distributors under public utilities and agencies was 

good news to other Interior lawmakers. “Distribution of gas becomes a public purpose instead of 

a for-profit purpose,” said Fairbanks Democratic Rep. David Guttenberg. “For me it creates an 

amazing alignment of purpose.” 

 

One of the biggest criticisms of MWH’s involvement revolved around the private investment the 

company brought into the project, about $80 million. Guttenberg and local officials were 

concerned the rate of return for that investment harmed the final price of gas for consumers. 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   9 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

Private investors and private profits have long been a concern when bringing gas to the 

Fairbanks area. In 2012, the local governments gathered together to form the Interior Gas Utility, 

a municipal utility with the goal of serving the city of North Pole and other medium-density 

areas of the Fairbanks North Star Borough. The move was a direct snub to the privately held 

Fairbanks Natural Gas, which some lawmakers said had not done enough to expand gas 

distribution while collecting profits. 

 

The Interior Gas Utility and Fairbanks Natural Gas traded blows in front of the Regulatory 

Commission of Alaska as the two fought for the exclusive right to distribute gas outside the city 

of Fairbanks. The proceedings, which included vicious attacks over each group’s ultimate 

motive, ended with the Interior Gas Utility’s victory. 

 

Whether or not the Interior Gas Utility and Fairbanks Natural Gas merge is unclear, but Wilken 

said buying the private utility and its existing gas trucking operation puts the project on much 

better footing than before. 

 

“We had a fragmented market before and the fact that we are a very small market a long ways 

from anywhere made the project that much more tough, but now we have a much more compact 

project,” he said. “What we have now is a supply coming from a different direction and we don’t 

have as many unknowns. We can put a pretty definite cost on it.” 

 

Lawmakers who spoke with the governor said Walker was intent on achieving the original goal 

of bringing gas to consumers at a burner-tip price of $15 per thousand cubic feet of natural gas, 

an equivalent to a $2 gallon of heating oil. 

 

On the campaign trail and after his election, Walker had been wary about the financial reality of 

trucking gas from the North Slope, but purchasing Fairbanks Natural Gas is something the 

governor is familiar with. The Alaska Gasline Port Authority, a group created by the Fairbanks 

North Star Borough and other municipalities and one Walker had been affiliated with, had 

explored purchasing Fairbanks Natural Gas in 2010. One version of that plan included the group 

taking out some $250 million in loans to buy Fairbanks Natural Gas, build a North Slope plant 

and begin trucking gas down the Dalton Highway. 

 

Because of that experience, Walker maintained that he thought the North Slope route didn’t 

pencil out for Fairbanks. After issuing an order directing the state agencies to begin looking 

south, Walker told the News-Miner that early numbers on Cook Inlet were “pretty encouraging.” 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   10 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

Borough Representative 

 The assembly last week was filled with testimony on the concerns of citizens.  Concern 

was voiced in regards to the right to clean air and the right to heat your home.  I was at 

the meeting until after 11:00 p.m. and testimony was not done yet.  The presiding officer 

informed the public that they would stay until all had a chance to comment and that they 

would not make any decision on Thursday.  The official discussion and vote will take 

place on February 12
th 

and there are already several amendments.   

  

 

City Clerk, Kathy Weber 

 Reminder that APOC forms are due to the City Clerk and to APOC by March 15, 2015. 
 My records preparation clerk was hired by the Fire Department as their new Admin 

Assistant.  She will be greatly missed in Admin. 
 I am in the process of a possible new temporary person to help with records. 
 I will be out of the office from February 5 – 24.  You can still reach me by phone or by 

email. 
 

 
 

ONGOING PROJECTS 

None 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
None 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
None 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 
ORDINANCE 15-01, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 

AMEND CHAPTER 8.04 NUISANCES AND ADD SECTION 8.04.05 TO PROHIBIT 

THE EXTRACTION OF MARIJUANA OILS WITHIN CITY LIMITS  

Mayor Ward introduced the ordinance. 

 

Public Comment 

Brenda Sadler – 3831 Kensington 

Ms. Sadler gave a brief history of her background and resume.  She congratulated Chief Dutra 

and the Council on their diligence to safety in the community.  She thanked the council for being 

one of the first communities for addressing the marijuana issue.  She spoke in favor of the 



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   11 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

ordinance. 

 

Mr. Welch moved to Introduce and Advance Ordinance 15-01, An Ordinance of the City of 

North Pole, Alaska to amend Chapter 8.04 Nuisances, and add Section 8.04.05 to prohibit 

the extraction of marijuana oils within city limits. 

 

Seconded by Mr. McCarthy 

 

Mr. Welch moved to Amend Ordinance 15-01 by deleting line 24 – 24 and adding on line 48 

as follows:  A person or corporation that processes marijuana oil using an flammable extraction 

 

 

Discussion 

Mr. McGhee said he had issue with the wording on lines 48 and 49 and felt they needed to define 

the wording of the violation of $1,500.  He commented that the State has another 9 months to put 

this into law.  He thinks they need to define item D. 

 

Chief Dutra came forward and explained the process. 

 

Mr. Welch asked how the $1,500 was determined. 

 

Ms. Hunter asked if the word “entity” would be better. 

 

Mayor Ward said this had been vetted through the City Attorney. 

 

On the amendment 

 

PASSED 

Yes:  7 - Holm, McGhee, Welch, McCarthy, Smith, Hunter, Ward 

No:  0-  

Absent:  0 

 

On the main motion as amended 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

PASSED 

Yes:  7 - Holm, McGhee, Welch, McCarthy, Smith, Hunter, Ward 

No:  0-  

Absent:  0 

 

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   12 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

ORDINANCE 15-02, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 

AMEND TITLE 12 STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND PUBLIC PLACES BY ADDING 

CHAPTER 03 MARIJUANA USE IN PUBLIC PLACES, TO REGULATE THE 

CONSUMPTION OF MARIJUANA IN A PUBLIC PLACE 

 

 

Public Comment 

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Introduce and Advance Ordinance 15-02, an ordinance of the City of 

North Pole, Alaska to amend Title 12- Streets, sidewalks, and public places by adding 

Chapter 12.03, Marijuana use in public places to regulate the consumption of marijuana in 

a public place. 

 

Seconded by Mr. McCarthy 

 

Discussion 

Mr. McGhee said he couldn’t support the wording “in public view” by way of consumption. He 

said that he felt the council was infringing on private property and they needed to redefine 

“public”.  He felt that the City needs to stand by the definition of what is public which is defined 

in Webster’s Dictionary “public place that is maintained by public funds”. 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to amend B. 3. as follows:   

B. 

3.Public place means a place to which the public place being any space maintained by 

public funds and subject to the same laws as alcohol consumption. has access and 

includes, but is not limited to, streets, highways, sidewalks, alleys, transportation 

facilities, parking areas, convention centers, sports arenas, schools, places of business 

or amusement, shopping centers, malls, parks, playgrounds, prisons, and other portions  

of apartment houses and hotels not constituting rooms or apartments designed for 

actual residence  such as hallways, lobbies, and doorways. 

Seconded by Mr. McCarthy 

 

Discussion 

Mr. McCarthy liked the verbiage and was in favor of it. 

 

Mr. Welch said that everything needed to be spelled out so it’s not vague in understanding and 

would like to see what the city attorney has to say about it. 

 

Ms. Hunter agreed that things needed to be spelled out to give a clear idea of what is meant by 

public spaces.  Ms. Hunter said she thought that it was a misnomer that marijuana should be 



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   13 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

regulated or treated as alcohol.  She felt it was an assumption that people would have the same 

rights with marijuana as with alcohol. 

 

Ms. Holm said she has a problem with the verbiage and that it could be a nuisance with our 

police in some locations and that it’s very important to narrow it down and that it can be 

amended it at a later date.   

 

Mr. McGhee said that private parking lots are not included.  Public consumption means just that.  

He felt the council was nitpicking trying to control the use and consumption of marijuana.  He 

said a public facility is something that is funded by public monies or taxes.  He doesn’t 

understand what people are afraid of.  In 2013 over 43,000 died from prescription drugs.  In 2013 

no one died from marijuana use. 

 

Mayor Ward said a lot of time was taken to draft the ordinance.  The definition of public place 

includes places of business and portions of apartments and hotels hallways, lobbies and 

doorways.  It is still illegal in military installations.  EAFB said that any hotel or apartment 

building will be off limits to their personnel.  And the same goes for any police officer in the 

state of Alaska.   He felt the council was doing their diligence with this ordinance to make clear 

where usage is allowed.  In the future they can expand on the ordinance.  

 

Mr. McCarthy said this is only stop gap and that this ordinance will probably change. 

 

Mr. McGhee said that there are a lot of businesses that have fenced off areas, not visible from the 

road, where people can go out and participate in various outdoor activities, not in view of the 

public and that we are telling them that they can’t consume, whether it’s legal or not.  Mayor 

Ward mentioned that there is an “except by permit” provision or statute or regulation and again 

stated that the ordinance could be changed in the future.    

 

 

On the amendment 

FAILED 

Yes:  2 – McCarthy, McGhee 

No:  5- Smith, Holm, Hunter, Welch, Ward 

Absent:  0 

 

On the main motion 

 

Discussion 

Mr. McGhee didn’t feel that the council had a right to tell a business what they can do on their 

property.  He didn’t feel that at this point they had the legal right to do that.  He said the Refinery 

Lounge has been black balled from military use many times because of activities.   

 

Ms. Hunter said that her interpretation of the ballot measure is that it is intended for marijuana 



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   14 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

use in your home and that she intends to uphold that.   It’s her interpretation of what is in the law 

and that she is in favor of what is stated in the law.  In addition she stated that the municipality of 

Anchorage decided that they needed to define what public was because the way it was written 

was so vague.  The city of North Pole is not the only city trying to get a better definition.  She 

thinks that when you have a good definition of what the law is people will respect the law and 

will appreciate knowing what they can and cannot do in order to follow the law.   

 

On Ordinance 15-02 

PASSED 

Yes – 6 – Hunter, Welch, McCarthy, Smith, Holm, Ward 

No – 1 – McGhee 

Absent – 0 

 

 

RESOLUTION 15-08, A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE TO 

REQUEST CLARIFICATION FROM THE STATE OF ALASKA ON BALLOT 

MEASURE 2, THE LEGALIZATION OF MARIJUANA 

Mayor Ward introduced the resolution and spoke on it. 

 

Public Comment 

Sharon Beeman, 2540 Honey Bee Lane, North Pole 

 

Ms. Beeman appreciates resolution 15-08 and the issues being brought forward, but has concerns 

about lines 19 – 22.  She wasn’t sure what the intent was and said that unless you test it you’re 

not going to know the levels of THC and CBD.  If you see a person you think is violating the law 

people would not know what to arrest them on.  She said she needs to do more research but 

edible products seem to be problematic, she’s not sure what kind of problems they are having 

with it exactly.  As Mr. McGee stated there have been no deaths and you can’t overdose on 

marijuana, but there is no statistical data on it. Her other concern was line 47; and felt it was a 

way to kill a business and that the state and city shouldn’t be able to tell you that you can’t 

advertise.  She agreed that how they advertise should be regulated, kept tasteful and not geared 

toward children.   

 

Chief Dutra, 125 Snowman Lane 

 

Chief Dutra stated that based on statistics he’s seen there have been no documented cases of 

overdoses of THC, but there has been significant collateral damage because of those under the 

influence of THC.  The marijuana industry is fighting these claims because they say there are no 

facts supporting these cases and that there were underlying issues.  He thinks it’s important to be 

aware that it is serious.  He also said that we all expect those public places that we all use to be 

contaminant free, such as tobacco and especially marijuana.  It’s important that those issues are 

considered in the ordinance.   

 



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   15 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to suspend the rules for 10 minutes to read Resolution 15-006 from the 

Matanuska-Susitna Borough that was passed on January 20, 2015. 

 

Seconded by Ms. Hunter 

 

 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve Resolution 15-08 a resolution of the City of North Pole to 

request clarification from the state of Alaska on ballot measure 2, the legalization of 

marijuana 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch  

 

Discussion 

 

Mr. Welch moved to amend Resolution 15-08, line 51, to delete “following” and insert 

“aforementioned”  

 

Seconded by Ms. Holm 

 

PASSED 

Yes – 7 – Hunter, Welch, McGhee, McCarthy, Smith, Holm, Ward 

No – 0 

Absent – 0 

 

Discussion 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to amend Resolution 15-08, line 47, where is says whereas whether any 

public advertising for marijuana and related products should be prohibited and remove 

the word “prohibited” and insert “regulated”. 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch 

 

Mr. McGhee agreed with the public that to prohibit advertising is wrong, but instead to regulate 

it so it’s not indecent or made appealing to young people, is the suggestion he’d like to send to 

the Legislature.   

 

Ms. Hunter is in favor of prohibiting advertising because she thinks the people who would be in 

business would have no problems attracting customers.  She thinks it simpler to just outlaw 

advertising all together.   

 

Ms. Holm agrees with Mr. McGhee and likes the word regulated better than prohibited because 

the word advertising is really broad.   



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   16 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

 

 

PASSED 

Yes – 6 – McCarthy, Smith, Holm, Welch, McGhee, Ward 

No – 1 – Hunter 

Absent – 0 

 

Discussion 

 

Ms. Hunter wondered about lines 13 and 14 and the transportation of marijuana.   She wants to 

retain the use of drug detection dogs to aid in the prevention of illegal shipping of marijuana in 

and out of the state.   

 

Mr. McCarthy stated that the feds would continue to use drug detection dogs and that they would 

be the ones responsible for marijuana coming in and out of Alaska. 

 

Mr. McGhee said this falls under homeland security and borders and it’s not for the cities to be 

concerned with.   

 

Mayor Ward said this resolution is meant to give guidance or ask for clarification for the state.  It 

pertains to issues of the municipality, but also to the state as a whole.   

 

 

PASSED 

Yes – 7 – Hunter, Welch, McGhee, McCarthy, Smith, Holm, Ward 

No – 0 –  

Absent – 0 

 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Ms. Holm – Wanted to say that it’s Heart Awareness Month and she hopes everyone is 

staying healthy, eating healthy and exercising.   

 

Mr. Welch –  He noticed that TV history was made with 114.4 million people viewing the 

Super Bowl and thought it would be nice if they could get 14 people in here to discuss what 

goes on in the city.   

 

Mr. McGhee – He appreciates the ordinances that are coming up and the open discussion 

and hopes that after February 24
th

 the state can come up with something.  He wants council 

to be careful to not regulate business and encumber what the majority voted for and allow 

them to do what they’re going to do.  He appreciates the council and all their input.  The 

roads are still bad and he asked the public to be careful.   



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   17 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

 

Mr. McCarthy – He’s talked with people about the 65 mph and they are all for it.  The 

people he’s asked, who say they voted yes on Proposition 2, say they voted yes for personal 

1 ounce use and not for opening up a new industry and that people didn’t realize that was 

part of the proposition.   

 

Mr. Smith –Thanked all the young men coming out and getting their merit badges.  He wants 

everyone to dress warm and to drive careful and sees a lot of good things coming out of the 

meetings and workshops.  Thank you to the council for putting together a nice proposal for 

the community.   

 

Ms. Hunter – On a personal note she’s had a two week long migraine headache after not 

having any for 5 – 6 years.  She’s thankful to get a copy of the meeting she missed.  Overall 

the perspective she is coming from is she would like to be more conservative and more 

restrictive in the regulation at the beginning and loosen them up as necessary because it will 

be more difficult to do it later. She’s concerned about North Pole being associated with 

marijuana retail sales.  She appreciates the discussions they are having and people have been 

very good at expressing their views.   

 

 

Mayor Ward – He thanked everyone for a productive meeting and reminded everyone that 

they are not to talk about items they voted on and looks forward to putting his best leg 

forward down in Juneau.  This will be his second time going to Juneau and it will be a 

wonderful experience.  He hopes to have a great report to bring back to the council and 

please mark down on your calendar that there is a meeting on Thursday.  The next council 

meeting is on Tuesday, February 17
th

. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mr. McGhee adjourned the meeting at 8:08 p.m. 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch 

 

The regular meeting of January 20, 2015 adjourned at 8:08 p.m. 

 

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 

Council on Monday, February 2, 2015.    

       ____________________________________ 

        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

  

                             



Regular City Council Meeting 

February 2, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

   18 
Minutes 

February 2, 2015 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk       



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced:  February 2, 2015  

Possible Adoption:  February 17, 2015 
 

City of North Pole 
Ordinance 15-01 Page 1 
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
 2 

ORDINANCE 15-01 3 
 4 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 5 

AMEND CHAPTER 8.04 NUISANCES AND ADD SECTION 8.04.005 TO 6 

PROHIBIT THE EXTRACTION OF MARIJUANA OILS WITHIN CITY 7 

LIMITS.  8 
  9 
WHEREAS, Ballot Measure 2 – An act to Tax and Regulate the Production, Sale and Use of 10 

Marijuana, and codified as Alaska Statues 17.38, provides for the legalization of marijuana, was 11 

passed by the voters in the recent state election and certified on November 28, 2014 by the State 12 

of Alaska, Division of Elections; and 13 

WHEREAS, the effective date of the state marijuana statue is February 24, 2015; and  14 

WHEREAS, marijuana extraction of “hash oils” is an extremely dangerous process, and 15 

WHEREAS, cooking of “hash oils” poses an extreme danger to our residents, homes and 16 

businesses, and  17 

WHEREAS, “hash oil” cookers are not listed as approved devices in Alaska for commercial or 18 

home use, and 19 

WHEREAS, the personal use and consumption of marijuana is not affected by the decision to 20 

ban the extraction of marijuana oils within North Pole City Limits, and; 21 

WHEREAS, The state of Alaska has yet to determine regulations for the extracting of marijuana 22 

oils, and 23 

WHEREAS it is extremely unlikely that the State of Alaska will establish guidelines for 24 

personal extraction of marijuana oils, and  25 

WHEREAS, North Pole is interested in keeping its neighborhoods as safe as possible from fire 26 

and explosion risk. 27 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 28 

 29 

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 30 

 31 

Section 2.  Title 8 Chapter 4 Section .005 Marijuana oil extraction-prohibited, is hereby added to 32 

the North Pole Municipal Code of Ordinances as follows [new text in underlined italicized red 33 

font; deleted text in strikethrough font]:  34 

 35 

 36 

 37 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced:  February 2, 2015  

Possible Adoption:  February 17, 2015 
 

City of North Pole 
Ordinance 15-01 Page 2 
 

Title 8 38 

Chapter 04 39 

 40 

Section 8.04.005 Marijuana oil, flammable extraction-prohibited. 41 

A. Methods to process marijuana oil using a flammable extraction method is hereby 42 

prohibited within North Pole City Limits. 43 

B. “Flammable extraction method” is defined as using a flammable or explosive chemical, 44 

series of chemicals or fluid to extract oil from a marijuana plant. 45 

C. Methods of marijuana oil extraction that do not involve flammable or explosive materials 46 

are not a violation of this section.   47 

D. A person or corporation that processes marijuana oil using an flammable extraction 48 

method is in violation of this section and subject to a $1,500 (fifteen hundred dollar) fine.   49 

 Section 3. Effective date. 50 

This ordinance shall become effective on the first City business day following its adoption. 51 

 52 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 53 

17
th

 day February, 2015.  54 

 55 

 56 

        _____________________________ 57 

        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 58 

 59 

 60 

ATTEST: 61 

 62 

 63 

___________________________ 64 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 65 

North Pole City Clerk 66 

PASSED/FAILED 

Yes: 

No: 

Absent: 

 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced:  February 2, 2015  

Possible Adoption:   February 17, 2015 
 

City of North Pole 
Ordinance 15-02 Page 1 
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
 2 

ORDINANCE 15-02 3 
 4 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 5 

AMEND TITLE 12 STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND PUBLIC PLACES 6 

AND ADDING CHAPTER 12.03, MARIJUANA USE IN PUBLIC 7 

PLACES, TO REGULATE THE CONSUMPTION OF MARIJUANA IN 8 

A PUBLIC PLACE  9 
  10 
WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing 11 

requirement; and 12 

 13 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to 14 

conform to the requirements of the City and to clarify questionable areas; and 15 

 16 

WHEREAS, Ballot Measure 2 – An act to Tax and Regulate the Production, Sale 17 

and Use of Marijuana, and codified as Alaska Statues 17.38, provides for the 18 

legalization of marijuana, was passed by the voters in the recent state election and 19 

certified on November 28, 2014 by the State of Alaska, Division of Elections; and 20 

WHEREAS, newly enacted AS 17.38.040 states; 21 

 Public consumption banned, penalty. 22 

 It is unlawful to consume marijuana in public. A person who violates this 23 

section is guilty of a violation punishable by a fine of up to $100; and 24 

WHEREAS, the state statue does not define “public”; and  25 

WHEREAS, the state statue does not discuss or mandate any enforcement 26 

mechanism; and 27 

WHEREAS, the effective date of the state marijuana statue is February 24, 2015. 28 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 29 

North Pole: 30 

 31 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be 32 

codified. 33 

 34 

Section 2.  Title 12, Chapter 12.03, Marijuana use in Public Places, is hereby 35 

added to the North Pole Code of Ordinances as follows [new text in underlined 36 

italicized red font; deleted text in strikethrough font]: 37 

 38 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced:  February 2, 2015  

Possible Adoption:   February 17, 2015 
 

City of North Pole 
Ordinance 15-02 Page 2 
 

 39 

 40 

Title 12 41 

Chapter 12.03 42 

12.03.010 Consuming marijuana in a public place.  43 

A. It is unlawful for any person to knowingly consume marijuana when the 44 

person is : 45 

1. On, in or upon any public place, except as permitted by ordinance, 46 

regulation, statue or permit; or 47 

2. Outdoors on property adjacent to a public place, and without consent 48 

of the owner or person in control thereof.  49 

3. A person who consumes marijuana must take reasonable precautions 50 

to ensure consumption is not a nuisance to neighboring properties.  51 

B. For purposes of this section, the definitions of the words and phrases 52 

below shall apply: 53 

1. Consume shall have the meaning, in all conjugated forms, of 54 

“consumption” set forth in AS 17.38.900. 55 

2. Marijuana shall have the meaning set forth in AS 17.38.900. 56 

3. Public place means a place to which the public has access and 57 

includes, but is not limited to, streets, highways, sidewalks, alleys, 58 

transportation facilities, parking areas, convention centers, sports 59 

arenas, schools, places of business or amusement, shopping centers, 60 

malls, parks, playgrounds, prisons, and other portions  of apartment 61 

houses and hotels not constituting rooms or apartments designed for 62 

actual residence  such as hallways, lobbies, and doorways. 63 

12.03.020 Violation  64 

A.  Violation of this section is a minor offense punishable by a fine of $100 as set 65 

forth in AS 17.38.040.  66 

Section 3. Effective date. 67 

This ordinance shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. on the first City business day 68 

following its adoption. 69 

 70 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole 71 

City Council this 17
th

 day of February, 2015.  72 

 73 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced:  February 2, 2015  

Possible Adoption:   February 17, 2015 
 

City of North Pole 
Ordinance 15-02 Page 3 
 

 74 

           75 

      _____________________________ 76 

        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 77 

 78 

 79 

ATTEST: 80 

 81 

 82 

___________________________ 83 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 84 

North Pole City Clerk 85 

 86 

 87 

 88 

PASSED/FAILED 

Yes: 

No: 

Absent: 



North Pole Police l)ept.
125 Snowman Ln.
North Pole, AK 99705

Chief Steve Dutra
Phone: 907-488-8459
Fax: 907-488-5299

To: North Pole City Council
City Clerk Kathy'Weber

Re: Sale of SDEU Vehicle

The North Pole Police Department needs to sell the old SDEU Dodge pickup. The vehicle has
reached its useful end of life and has been replaced with a new vehicle. In researching the
process to sell such an asset it has been determined that I must sell the vehicle at"fair market
value." I have determined the "fair market value," by the following means.

Verbal quote from Affordable Used Cars Value $4,000
NADA values range from $4,250 - $9,000
Kelly Blue Book range was56,372 - $6501

The truck is a2002 Dodge pickup in good-fair condition with 131,386 miles on it. The City of
North Pole purchased this vehicle in 2010 for substantially less than its current value. Since
this vehicle was purchased using Equitable Sharing funds, all proceeds from the sale must be
returned to the fund from hence they originally came. I am asking to sell this vehicle for
$6,000. I will place an ad in the Newspaper and request sealed bids with a minimum bid of
$6,000.



N rth Pole
January 13, 2015 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

CORPORÀTION

Mayor Bryce Ward

North Pole City Councll Members
City of North Pole

125 Snowman Lane

North Pole, AK 99705

RE: NPEDC 4th Quarter 2014 Bed Tax Request

Dear Mayor Ward and Council Members,

Following ls a recap of fourth guarter 2014 activlties conducted by North Pole Economic Development
Corporation. Please accept this as a request for 4th quarte¡ 2OL4 bed taxes.

Act¡vit¡es related to E¡elson Air Force Base and Fort Wainwright were slower in the 4th guarter than the
previous three quarters of 20t4. After the Air Force announced that Eielson Air Force base is the only
preferred alternative for two squadrons of F35s, no date has yet been set for the beglnning of the
Environmental lmpact statement process. The Air Force did announce they would be reviewing basing
of the F16s. A recent announcement stated they are considering basing the Aggressor Squadron at
either Eielson, JBER or Nellls Alr Force Base. lF the F16s do get relocated, it will be an approximate loss
of 542 positions at Eielson. Base support positions would not be relocated or eliminated in anticipatlon
of the arrival of the F35s. Efforts to keep and secure the F15s at Eielson are ongoing.

The U.S. Army announced it will hold a listening sesslon on the Supplemental Programmatic
Envlronmental Assessment on force reductions. The session is scheduled for February 23'd. NpEDc wlll
again be coordinating/researchlng/writing testimony on the SPEA; please let me know if you are
¡nterested in testlfying and I can asslst wlth testimony,

The Buslness Retention & Expansion program was the focus of the fourth quarter. The State of Alaska
and the University of Alaska Anchorage came to Fairbanks to offer training for BRE volunteers and
partners. We received access to the BRE software and trained the flrst batch of volunteers who will be
conducting the surveys. The short term program goal is to conduct 300 in person surveys of local
buslnesses. lt is our hope that through analysis of the data gained through the surveys, we can identify
areas where we can asslst businesses in the short term and in the longer term, ldentlfy strategies that
will make businesses more competitive. Please let me know if you want to volunteer to conduct surueys
or know of any businesses that wish to be surveyed

NPEDC contínues to coordinate act¡vities with other state and local organizatlons that are involved in
economic development. lf you would like further information on any NPEDC actlvities, please do not
hesitate to contact me. I can be reached at 488-4558 or on my cell, 590-0024.

Sincerely

Nadine Winters

Executive Director

Po Box 55822 North Pole, AK 99705 Phone: 907.488.4558 tax907.lïg.3óóS www.npcdc.com



125 Snowman Ln 
North Pole, Alaska  
99705 
907-888-4444 
907-488-8584 

City of North Pole 
Office of the Mayor 

Memo 
To: North Pole City Council  

From: Mayor Ward 

cc:  

Date: February 11, 2015 

Re: IT support Contact 

  

Councilmembers, 

I have requested and reviewed two proposals for IT support for the City of North Pole Admin, 
Police and Fire Departments.  We have received proposals from our Current Provider for 
Admin, Tekmate and from Alasconnect, a local business.   

The City of North Pole has historically never had consistent It support.  A majority of IT issues 
were either dealt with internally with the expertise of existing staff (not trained in IT) or by 
contract with local businesses on a per hour basis.  It has been identified that the old approach 
to IT is not supportive of the needs of the city in the rapidly developing digital society we live in.  
Ensuring the City is complying with federal laws for records retention and security is an 
emerging issue that has been overlooked for our information systems.   

The two proposals were asked to include the following services for comparison: 

1) IT support for workstations and servers.(Admin, Police, Fire)   

2) Server support to include data storage and security (on site or off site) 

3) Data backup services and redundancy. 

The following proposals do not include switching infrastructure or wiring.  

 

 

 

 

1 
 



 
Tekmate      
  Month Year 
Contract  $    5,012   $  60,144  
ONE TIME FEE    $    7,300  
Total     $  67,444  

   
Alasconnect     
   month   year  
Contract  $    2,965   $  35,580  
ONE TIME FEE   0 
Total     $  35,580  

 

Both providers are proposing similar IT support for the City of North Pole, all services are 24-7 
365 days a year support for all workstations and devices.  The difference in the two providers 
is in regards to their server structure and support. 

Tekmate’s proposal is an onsite option to use our existing servers and have offsite backup.  
This would keep our servers physically here at City Hall.  The Tekmate proposal would include 
server support and replacement on a per month fee base.  (servers would be replaced every 
three years) to meet industry standards.   

The Alasconnect Proposal is for offsite data storage and support.  Alasconnect is proposing a 
fiber connection to their downtown facility to house and service server space in their secured 
facility.  Alasconnect will also include a 30mbps internet connection to service all departments.  
Alasconnect will provide all support including firewalls and antivirus to protect city information.  
In addition to offsite storage it will be expandable and all information will be replicated for 
duplicity and security of our information at their other facilities.   

The City of North Pole is currently under contract with Tekmate and has 22 months remaining 
on a three (3) year contract.  There is a buyout penalty on this agreement.   

It is my recommendation to authorize an agreement with Alasconnect for IT services and Data 
storage.  The 2015 approved budget has 38,000 allocated for IT services ACT# 01-02-00-
7007.   

Thank you 

 

Mayor Bryce J. Ward 
 
 
 
 

2 



North Pole Police Dept.
L25 Snowman Ln.
North Pole, AK 99705

Chief Steve Dutra
Phone: 907-488-8459
Fax:907-488-5299

To:

January 8,2015

North Pole City Council
City Clerk Kathy'Weber

Re: Purchase of Detective vehicle for Patrol

In early 2014, it was brought to my attention that Detective Stewart was in need of a vehicle
more suited for him and his mission. Some of these issues are related to the interior capacity of
the vehicle, size of storage, and towing ability. Some of the other issues are personal in nature.

Since this vehicle was purchased with Asset Forfeiture funds it had certain restrictions attached
to its use. One of those restrictions was the vehicle must be placed into official service for at
least 2 years. Since the service of this vehicle is restricted to certain activities there was no
remedy until the vehicle had surpassed the 2 year mark. As of December 2014, the vehicle has
been in official service for 2years.

My proposed resolution to these special conditions was to purchase the vehicle from the Asset
Forfeiture program and equip the vehicle for use in patrol as a traffic unit. The funds to
purchase the vehicle would come from the Vehicle Fleet Fund 51. This vehicle must be
purchased at"fair market value," and any proceeds from the sale of the vehicle must be placed
back into the fund where hence they came. This vehicle is a police rated model and would
replace our traffic patrol car and an older model would be retired.

The outfitting of this vehicle would then be funded using SOA drug seizure funds. This
proposal would effectively solve several problems with the least impact to my budget.

1) Assist NPPD with a fresh patrol car at a reduced price.
2) Be a reasonable step toward resolving the vehicle restriction on the employee.
3) Exchange our Traffic Patrol Vehicle with a vehicle with less miles and a new color.
4) Use SOA seizure funds to pay for a large portion of the costs of outfitting a new car.



5) Allow us to purchase a larger vehicle with towing capacity and storage for crime scene

equipment.

Since NPPD has had a strapped budget for several years and our vehicle fleet mileage has
slowly crept up to a concerning level. This vehicle only has 24,000 miles on it and is in good
condition. The normal cost for a new 2015 model would be approximately $26,000. Fair
market value on this used vehicle would be $15,000. This value was acquired using the
following sources.

Affordable Used Cars valued vehicle at $15,000.
NADA Guides valued vehicle $15,150. - $20,475.
Kelley Blue Book Valued vehicle at $13,780 - $16,117.

I would then return the funds from the sale of this vehicle to asset forfeiture fund and then
purchase a 2074-15 Chevrolet Tahoe using the State of Alaska Procurement Award C41900-
14-3. This contract award complies with the City of North Pole ordinance and would solve all
of the concerns raised with the current Detective vehicle and also give us the ability to deploy a

crime scene vehicle with all the necessary equipment for processing crime scenes. This vehicle
would cost $35,410.00. I would request permission to purchase this vehicle first, then once it
arrives outfit and purchase the Taurus for patrol.

The SOA procurement process exceeds the requirements listed in NPMC 04.16.030.

Thank uorh

chier Ã"



Kelley Blue Book Page 1 o12

Kettey Blue Book Therrusred Resource''

GcFirltr

Adverdsúent why ¿ds?

g'r lir .

LEARN MORE

Used 2Ot3 FordTaurus
Pricing Report

Vehicte Highlights

FueI Economy:
City 19/Hwy 29lComb 25 MPG

Doors:4

Drivetrain: FWD

EPA Class: Large Cars

Country of Origin: United Stâtes

Max Seating: 5

Engine: V6, 3.5 Liter

Transmission: Auto, 6-Spd w/SetShft

Body Style: Sedan

Country of Assembly: Un¡ted States

Buy from a Private Party

Gsoc vÈry Gmd
Cmdititr Cffiditim Fy¿êrltri$r¡,åto S15,S94 dàääi*

{å5û?/mt}i såË,åÂ7
Fâir

cüñditiôn

Pr¡vat€ Party Values valid for your area through LlSl2OLs

Seats
Dual Power Seats

Wheels and Tires
Alloy Wheels

Style: SEL sedan 4D

Mileage: z+,0+r

Your Configured Options
Our pre-selected optlons, based on typkål equipment for this car

/Opt¡ons that you added while configu¡¡ng this car

Engine
V6, 3.5 Liter

Transmission
Auto, 6-Spd w/SelShft

Dr¡vetra¡n
FWD

Braking and Tract¡on
Traction Control
AdvanceTrac
ABs (4-Wheel)

Comfort and Convenience
Keyless Entry
Keyless Start
Air Condltioning
Power Windows
Power Door Locks
Cruise Control

Steer¡ng
Power Steering
Tllt & Telescoplng Wheel

Entertainment and Instrumentat¡on
AM/FM Stereo
MP3 (Single Disc)
SlrlusXM Satell¡te
Bluetooth Wireless
MyFord Telematics
SYNC

Safety and Secur¡ty
Dual Alr Bags

S¡de Air Bags
F&R Head Curtain Alr Bags

http://www.kbb.comÆoñltaurusl2OL3-ford-taurus/sel-sedan-4dl?condition=good&vehicleid... 7lBl20I5



2013 Ford Taurus Sedan 4D SEL AWD Prices, Values & Specs - NADAguides

o/o)

Thc Powcr of Vohich lnÍermqlion
NÂDAguides.com

2013 Ford Taurus-V6

Sedan 4D SEL AWD

NADAguides.com Price Repoft
Rough

Trade-In

iL4,475
$67s

$15,150

std.

Average
Trade-In

$15,800

$67s
i16,475

std

Clean
Trade-In

$16,875

$67s
$17,550

std.

Page I ofl

E Close Window

rlB/20rs

Clean
Retail

$19,800

$67s

i2O,475

std.

Base Price
Mileage: (24,641) mites

Total Base Price

Options:
Aluminum/Alloy Wheels

Go Fr¡thar

O Copyright 2015 NADAguides. All Rights Reserved
O Copyright 2015 NADASC. All Rights Reserved.

PRICE w¡th Options $15,150 ç16,475 $17,550 i2OA75
The history of a vehicle

impacts its value
Autochec'.#/iifiËfr*

ll lr

LEARN MORE

htþ://www.nadaguides.com/Carsl20l3ßord/Taurus-V6/Sedan-4D-SEL-AWDA/alues/Print ll8l20T5



Name Phone Address Phone
Chair Katy Englund 978-2282 po box 73207 Fairbanks AK 99707 Kenglund.ak@gmail.com

teffonie Wyman 322-0236 teffw@northpoleworshipcenter.com
Christina Croskrey 388-8076 ccroskrey@alaskasurgerycenter.com
Bryce Ward 888-4444 621 holiday Road, North Pole, Alaska bryce.ward@northpolealaska.org
Larnetia skipps 378-6635 larnetiaskipps@gmail.com
Howard Rixie 378-7797 hsrixie@gmail.com

Chair Bryce Ward 888-4444 City of North Pole Mayor bryce.ward@northpolealaska.org
Joni Scharfenberg 978-1727 Tanana Soil and water jonisc@gmail.com
Jeff Jacobsen 459-1304 Fairbanks North Star Borough jjacobson@fnsb.us

Fort Wainwright representaive 
Eielson AFB representative 

Steve Dutra 488-8456 North Pole PD sdutra@northpolepolice.org
Buddy Lane 322-2193 Interior Fire Chiefs Association (CNP Fire Chief) blane@northpolefire.org
Joe Dallaire 978-0829 Alaska Peace Officers Association (APOA) joedallaire.apoa@gmail.com

2 year Francine Cork 488-1973 401 Holiday Road North Pole Ak 99705 thecorks@gci.net
2 year Jeff Jacobson 460-7733 Po Box 57033 North Pole Ak 99705 jjacobson@fnsb.us
1 year Melissa Bidwell 322-8873 105 E 7th ave North Pole Ak 99705
1 year Jim Taylor 488-2422 1124 Lake Drive North Pole Ak 99705
3 year Sharron Geese 699-4694 353 E 8th ave apt 301 North Pole, AK Geese@alaska.net
3 Year ALT Jon Poirrier 322-0623 1001 Black Bear Turnaroung North Pole, AK poirrier@gci.net

Festival Committee 

Ethics Board

Trooper Gabe Rich and Trooper Scott Johnson Memorial Park Committee

mailto:Kenglund.ak@gmail.com
mailto:teffw@northpoleworshipcenter.com
mailto:ccroskrey@alaskasurgerycenter.com
mailto:bryce.ward@northpolealaska.org
mailto:larnetiaskipps@gmail.com
mailto:hsrixie@gmail.com
mailto:bryce.ward@northpolealaska.org
mailto:jonisc@gmail.com
mailto:jjacobson@fnsb.us
mailto:sdutra@northpolepolice.org
mailto:blane@northpolefire.org
mailto:joedallaire.apoa@gmail.com
mailto:thecorks@gci.net
mailto:jjacobson@fnsb.us
mailto:Geese@alaska.net
mailto:poirrier@gci.net


Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: February 17, 2015 

Possible Adoption:  March 5, 2015 
 

City of North Pole 
Ordinance 15-03 Page 1 
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 1 
 2 

ORDINANCE 15-03 3 
 4 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 5 

AMEND TITLE 2, ADMINISTRATION AND PERSONNEL, CHAPTER 6 

2.36.470 E, PAY 7 
  8 
WHEREAS, changes to the practices, regulations and policies is a continually changing 9 

requirement; and 10 

 11 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 12 

requirements of the City; and 13 

 14 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole desires to ensure employees are compensated fairly; and  15 

 16 

WHEREAS, The City of North Pole desires to streamline the accounting and payroll process;  17 

 18 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 19 

 20 

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 21 

 22 

Section 2. Title 2, Administration and Personnel, Chapter 2.36.470 is amended in the North Pole 23 

Code of Ordinances as follows by inserting the text Underlined in red and removing sections that 24 

have been stricken:  25 

 26 

Administration and Personnel 27 

Title 2 28 

Chapter 4.36.470 Pay 29 

2.36.470 Pay.   30 

E.    Employees will advance to the next pay step on January 1st of  the first full pay period of 31 

each year, except for those new employees hired within the last quarter of the year. Employees 32 

hired within the last quarter of the year will not be eligible for their annual step salary increases 33 

until the first full pay period in next January following their one-year anniversary. 34 

 (Ord. 10-09 §2, 2010; Ord. 10-02 §2, 2010; Ord. 08-13 §2(part), 2008; Ord 04-05 §2(part), 35 

2004; Ord. 01-12 §2(part), 2001; Ord. 01-09 §2(part), 2001; Ord. 00-3 §2(part), 2000; Ord. 99-1 36 

§2, 1999; Ord. 98-12 §2(part), 1998) 37 

Section 3. Effective date. 38 

This ordinance shall become effective on the first City business day following its adoption. 39 

 40 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced & Advanced: February 17, 2015 

Possible Adoption:  March 5, 2015 
 

City of North Pole 
Ordinance 15-03 Page 2 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 41 

2
nd

 day of March, 2015.  42 

 43 

 44 

        _____________________________ 45 

        Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 46 

 47 

 48 

ATTEST: 49 

 50 

 51 

___________________________ 52 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 53 

North Pole City Clerk 54 

 55 

 56 

 57 

 58 

 59 

 60 

PASSED/FAILED 

Yes: 

No: 

Absent: 

 

 



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward
Introduced & Advanced:

Possible Adoption:

CITY OF NORTH POLE

ORDINANCE 15 .04

AN ORDINANCE REQUESTING THE PURCIIASE OF
A VEHICLE FOR DETECTIVE/CRIME SCENE OPERATIONS

USING JUSTICE FUNDS

WHEREAS, the North Pole Police Department needs to purchase a vehicle for the detective and
crime scene investigations; and

WHEREAS, the North Pole Police Department currently has no crime scene investigation
vehicle to use for deployment to crime scenes inside the city limits; and

\ryHERBAS, the use of Asset Forfeiture Funds from - Department of Justice Fund 21 in the
amount of $35,410.00 would be used to pay for the purchase of a2OI4-15 Chevrolet Tahoe.

WHEREAS, the attached documents generated by the State of Alaska, Division of General
Services procurement website, shows the base bid for a2OL4-I5 Chevrolet Tahoe from Alaska
Sales and Service is $35,410.00.

WHEREAS, the Alaska Statue 36.30.700 allows the State of Alaska to make state contracts
available to cities within the state. The recently amended North Pole Municipal Code allows the
City to purchase items on other entities' requests for bids if the bids meet the Municipal Code
bidding requirements. The NMPC requires that the Mayor or his designee must certify in writing
that these minimums are met. The State of Alaska ITB Class l52Large SUV's (attached) does
exceed the minimum requirements for NMPC 04.16.030, which only requires three estimates.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole:

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall not be codified.

Section 2. Amending24 as per fiscal note attached

SEE ATTACHED FISCAL NOTE

Section 3. Effective date.
This ordinance shall become effective at 5:00 p.m. of the first City business day following its
adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this
xxxx ofxxxxxxx, 2014.



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward
Introduced & Advanced:

Possible Adoption:

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55

56
57
58
59
60
6'1.

62
63

64
65

ATTEST:

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC
North Pole City Clerk

PASSEDÆAILED
Yes:
No:
Absent:



CLASS 152
LARGE SUV

Standard Class 152 SUV

0
0

o
0

0

0

NOTES

Shipping to Fairbanks
Shipping to Juneau (See Dealer Notes for Non State of Alaska Purchases)

Anti-Freeze-Long Life Coolant to a minimum -50 degree protection
OEM Trailer Hitch Packaqe
OEM Front Tow Hooks
Deep Tint Glass
oEM or Dealer lnstalled Auto start {siee l-ofd ueâ¡er Noles)
3rd Row SeaI4Ol2Ol4O Fold Down

OEM Backup Camera svstem

OEM Stereo with CD and Hands Free Communication Svstem
AVAILABLE OPTIONS

Replacing Vehicle:

lAl."k. S.1"" & S..i"e I

lConract: Richard Dixon I

lt.oo r""r srh Avenue I

lAnchorage, Alaska 99501
lPhon"' 265-7535 I

lFax:265-75o7 I

l¡n¡sEaeu¡tul"r"m l

$ 35,410.OO
Chevrolet

Enqine: 5.3 Liter V-8
Model: CK157O6

Model: Tahoe

Vendor: Cal Worth¡ngton Ford
Contact: Ray Marcum
431 Unga Street
Anchorage, Alaska 99501
Phone:793-8213
Fax: 793-8255
fleetoil@aol.com

$ 30,430.O0
Ford

Enqine: 5.4 Liter V-8
Model: U1G

Model: Expedition XL

1 =ves $ 35,410.00 $ 30,430.00

OEM White (Any other color requires prior
of OEM Manufactures Standard Cloth Upholstery lnterior (cloth or cloth

Wheel base: Minimum 116 lnches Maximum 120 ¡nches

Overall Length: Minimum 201 lnches Maximum 207 ¡nches

Four Wheel Drive (4x4)

Engine: Gas VB

Cruise Control/Tilt Wheel
Power Windows/Power Door Locks
Keyless Remote Entry w/ 2 Fobs

Power Mirrors (left and right outside)

Rear Window Defroster

Conditioning

Carpet
(4) Doors
R: Minimum 7400 lbs.

vinyl trim)

passenger seating (including driver)



STATE OF AI.ASI(A
flê trffe Equlllfft FlEEl(Conffilry Arfhorlty)

^rdrüågG,Ar*¡ 
Ëãog GA1900-14€

DATEOFG(IITRAST¡

DATE ¡TltTL @flTRACI IEGITÜ:

DAII lfflAL GOI{ITAGf EIDS:

}IUI¡|EER T PgilOÞ OF RENâTfl.s:

RENE|YA.8 rXP|lE (r0tYR):

ll{^OGOiDA}lCEUrtTtlllD*8EF- 1000 DÀrED: SEFrEMBERl0.20fs

ADDFESE:

AI.ASII(A SÀI.88 AND SERVICE

21,2013

COilTAET llllEt RON EAETI'iAN

PllOl{E l{UßER¡Hl7-26É7555

E IIA¡Lí RCtNg¡{9a¡¡9.C$,

ISOOEAET6TH A\ÆNUE
AÌ{C[{OR¡\6E A-å$(A 90ã01

ocToEER 24. z0l3

ocToôER 3f.201Ë

6YEÀROOI{IRACT

EtTilAIIDYAUEOFII{fmtTERf: 1r,000,000.m

SEilD rr{YOIGËtÍ{ DUPUqAIETe tT^ll EqJffìTF!¡ET.¿00 E.a¿ilDAYEII.E,ÁIEflORTCEA(Gt06

THI¡ Oi!ËRCOilT]ÍUTE¡ABND¡XGGONN*ilÍ EËIWEEilITTIEüfATETTHE COf,TilgN'R¡J8'!D I{ERËOT{. UIIAUTHOIEID
I(þIFIGANOilHIT}IOUTIIIIEIPRE¡Ð PRIORåPFiOYALOFTHECOXTRICTüCA'TIIORffVilIREÚULÍ lr¡AFIì¡IT|ALOEUGANOT
OH ìlG GüIln'gflt' AIMIR U}I^IITHONEED TIÍATE FEiSÍ¡H{EL TAI{TG TI{E CHA}IC¡.

DESCRIPTIOI{

DUAÍIE FET,TOû¡, COITRÆÛIC OFICER II

¡hlrôl¡f
ôlth.ú¡büdútfEtlArlvr¡G

AlPOnlAt t f ,CdùÉûtñr¡É
2. ll! 6bb l!

DEPIRlËf,T'
ÚTAftECNXFSIF|.EET

E,¡T2ilDAVEu,E
106ùt

26¡{7¡3 PHOi{E I (t0r) 2E}0r01 F^x

UGHT DUW VEHICLE COTIISACÎ

SECTrOlt I
SPECIAI TERTE & GOIIDIT¡ONs

sEcTtoN il
STANDARD TER}IS I CONDITIONS

sEcTtoil lil
SPECIFICAÎION8

sECTTON Vr
BID PRIGE SCHEDULE



DEPARTIIE]ÚT:

DOUARTERS, STATE EGIJIFMENT FLEET
E, 42ND AVEilUE

A|-ASKA99508
289-0t93 PHOÌ{E I (907) 2t+0801 FIX

STATE OF ALASKA
HQ, STATE EQUIPIENT FLEET (Contract¡ng A¡thor¡tyl

A¿00 E. ¡lZnd Awnue
Ahchoragc, Alaska 99508 cAl900-14-3

GONTRAGTOR:

ADDRESS:

ALASKA SALES AND SERVICE

13OO EAST 5TH AVENUE
ANCHORAGE ALASKA 99501

CONIACT NAME: RON EASTIì,lAl,l

PHONE NUMBER:907-26S7555

E-MAlLr RON@qK94¡95."O"

DATEOFCOilTRAGT:

DATE INITIAL CO]IÍTRACT BEGINSi

DAIE INTI,AL GONTRACT ENDS:

NUMBER & PERIOD OF RENEWALS:

ocToBER 24,2013

ocToBER 24,20't3

ocToBER 31,2018

5YEARCONTRACT

RENEWALS EXPTRE (MOrYRt:

ISSUEDINACCORDANCEUIIITHBIDtSEF- 1900 DATED; SEPTEMBER 10,2013

ESTIMATED VALUE OF IN]TAL TERH: $1,000,000,00

SEND lt¡VolcEg lN DUPLICATE TO¡ STATE EqUlPilEl¡T FLEEI, 2200 E.42ND AVENUE, Ai¡CHORAGE 
^¡{ 

s9508

rHlS ORDER CONSTiTUTES A BlNDlt{G COMllflTfrtENT BETWEEN THE SÍATE At{D THE COÍ{IRACTOR LISTED HEREOiI, UNAUTHORtrED
¡I¡IODIFICAIIOI'I UNTHOUT THE EXPRESSED PRIOR APPROVAL OF THE CONTRACTING AUTHORITY wlLL RESULT IN A FINÁT{CIAL OBLIGATION
ON THE COI\TTRACTOR AND/OR UNAUTHORIZED STATE PERSONNEL MAJ(IXG THE CHANGE.

DESCRIPT¡ON

LIGHT DUTY VEHICLE CONTRACT

sEcTtoN I

SPECIAL TERMS & CONDITIONS

SEGTION II
STANDARD TERMS & CONDITIONS

sEcTroN ilt
SPECTFtCAItONS

SECTION VI
BID PRICE SCHEDULE

DUANE FELTON, COÍìTTRACTNG OFFICER II

AUfiORITV IIAilE ¡ NTLE SIoNATURE

mPoRTANT l. €ll lnì/oþos lfld documonÞ r€lrtlng to û$ od*.
CodeRållstllllonNo.02-00í185. [6mserÐtbrthèexclusfu€w€oflheSlai!endnotlorrËBle,2.



SECTION I

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

NOTE: This section will be used for Terms and Conditions that are "speciel" and/or unique to a particular contract.

1.0 INTENT: Contract to Purchase Llght Duty Vehlcles:

1.1 Contsact Period: 5 Years, MultiVendors

1.2 Quantities: Varies by Year

1.3 Locatlon of Use: Statewlde

1.4 Warranty locations: Anchorage and Fairbanks Alaska at a minimurn

1.5 ln addition to the State of Alaska requiremente, the Municipality of Anchorage and other Alaska political
subdivisions may cooperatively purchass from the resulting contract.

1,5.1 At no time may the contractor change the terms and condltions, alter the price to another entity,
which differs from the conlractual price. nor charge undisclosed administralive fees to allow
cooperative purchaslng,

2.0 DELIVERY:

2.1 Pre-dellvery setv|c€: Prior to delivery, each vehicla, piec€ of equipment or attachment shall be serviced
and inspected by the dealer or his agent. lnspection must include the following for all vehicles purchased
under this contract,

2.1.1 Dealer and vehicle identificatlon.

2.1.2 Check-offof service and inspection performed includlng a listof all fluids including type weight
and specification that are ln the equÌpment as delivered for allfluid compartments.

2.1-3 The vehicle's crankcase, differential and transmission, and other fluid compartments shall be
lilled to the manufacturer's recommended capaclty.

2.1.4 Fuel tank shall be filled to at least register a minimum %fullon the fuel gauge, unless reslricted
by the commercial carrier, when the vehicle arrives at the delivery location.

2,1,5 The vehicle shall be clean and free from defects when delivered and should be ready for
immediate and continued use upon dellvery.

2.1.6 Units delivered in an incomplete state, or which have deficiencies per the specification, are
subject to the llquldated damage charges as noted in paragraph 4.0 below.

2.2 lnspectlons:

2.2-1 The State's inspection of all materials and equlpment upon delivery is for the sole purpose of
identification. Such inspection shall not be construed as final or as acceptance of the materials or
equipment if materlals or equipment do not conform to Contract requirements. lf there are any
apparent defects ln the materials or equipmenl at the time of delivery, the State will promptly
notifo the Gontractor thereof. Without limiting any other rights of the State, The State at its option,
may require the Contractor to:

2.2.1.1 repair or replace at contractor's expense, any or all of the damaged goods,

2.2.1.2 refund the prÍce of any or all of the damaged goods, or

2.2.1.3 accept the return of any or all of the damaged goods.

2,2.2 Costs of remedying all defects, indirect and consequential costs of conecting same, and/or
removing or replacing any or all of the defective materials or equipment wÍll be charçd against
the bidder.

2.3 Acceptance:

2.3.1 Units will not be considered "Accepted'until ell deficiencies have been corrected. Thls includes
item 2.5 Line Sheets/Bill of MaterÍals and 7.0 Publications.

Sacfion l- SpecialTerms and Conditions
C41900-14-1 Lþht Duty Contract

Page I af 10



2.4 tlelivery Recelpt:

2.4.1 A delivery receipt will be required. The receipt must be filled out by the vendor, and
acknowledged by state receiving personnel by signature and date of actual receipt of equipmenl.
One copy of this delivery receipt is to be given to the state-receiving agency.

2.4.2 Vendors are cautioned and advised lhat such delivery forms or other receiving type documents
will not in any way be construed to mean the state has formally and fully äccepted unil(s)
referenced thereon as complete and meetlng every specificatlon set forth. Only the Contracting
Officer or designee may sign warranty docurnentation,

2.5 LineSheets/BillofMaterlals::

2.5.1 lt is required at the time of delivery that the successful bidder provides a comprehensive listing of
all components used to assemble the unit. A dealer window sticker Ís acceptable showing all
components.

2.5.2 This includes any components lnstalled by the manufacturer or any subcontractor or the
successful bidder.

2.5.3 lnfonlation will include at a minimum, when available, make, model serial number on items such
as engines, transmissions, axles, tires, bodies, etc. The listings will be specific to each piece of
equipment and will be provided on a window sticker or factory build sheet for each unit delivered.

3.0 F.O.B. POTNT:

3.1 The F.O.B. point is as listed in Section lV, Bid Schedule. Ownership of and title will remain with the
contractor until delMery is complete to final destination and accepted by the State. Equipment is not to be
driven on the Alcan Highway without prior written approvat frorn the conlracting offìcer.

3.2 Alf shipping charges over $100 must be documented by a copy of the actual shipping Invoice and received
with the invoice charge to the State.

3.3 Shipping must be consolidated for the best possible price. Shipping items separately must be pre-
approved'by the Contracting Officer PRIOR to shipment. For example, a Canopy or Spare Tire not being
shipped with host unit must be pre-approved,

4.0 DAMAGES FOR LATE DELIVERY AND NON{ONFORMING GOODS:

4.1 Time is of the essence in this contract. The Bidder is expected to deliver goods that conform in all material
respecls to tha contract spacifications on or before the date provided therein, as may be amended by
written agreement of the partles.

4.2 ln the evenl that lhe equipment is delivered late or doos not conform to the conþact specifications, the
State shall be enlitled to offset against the Contract Price, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, ana oost of rênting like equipment, multiplied by the nurnber of calendar daye elapsing
b date provided in the bid schedule and the delivery date to the State.. ln ihe case of
e class, that daily rentalfee is detemined to be S50,00. The number of days for which
liquidated damages shall apply shall include, Ín the case of non-conforming goods, the time reasonably
necessaryfor the State to pêrform inspection.

4,3 These liquldated damages represent a reasonable estlmate of amounts nec€ssary to compensate the
State for loss of use of the goods during the period in which the goods would have been available to the
State if conforming goods had been timely delivered.

5.0 WARRANW:

5.1 Standard Warranty Package:

5'1'1 Full (100%) Parts and Labor Warranty Coverage of all components for 36 months or 36,000 miles
whichever comes first from the date the unit is placed in service at the assigned location.

5.1.2 Full (100%) Warranty Coverage includes all cost of labor, parts, freight, lubricants, miscellaneous
cost, etc., to place the unit in like-new condition.

Secflon I- Standard Terms and Condltlons
CA1900-14-1 Light Duty Contract

Page 2 of 6



5,2

5,3

5.1.3 Should the manufacturer's standard warranty exceed the minimum State wananty requirements,
the manufacturer's warran$ will run in conjunction with and enhance the State's wärranty, then
continue for the remainder of its term.

5.1.4 For clarifùcation, warranty does not apply to normal wear and tear or maintenance items, accident
.damages, misuse of equipment or failure to operate or maintain equipment as prescríbed by
vendor/manufacturer,

5.1.5 Warranty on Altachments: Same as Standard Wananty Package.

5.1.6 ln-Service Date: Warranty on vehicles not placed ln service lmmediately upon receipt because of
time lag to construct body components and/or installation of special equipment, or due to
seasonal usage or other delay, shall be warranted from the date the vehicle is placed in service.
The receiving agency shall notify the vendor/manufacturer in writing of the actual "in service"
date. Notification of the requiremeht for delayed warranty will be provided on delivery orders
whenever possible.

Warran$r Glaims:

5.2.1 Warranty will be provided at the unit's assigned (in-service) locatíon. Because of lhe remote
location of some equipment it is not always practfcal to deliver equipment to authorized wananty
repair facilities. ln these cases, lhe vendor may perform warranty work at the state's location or,
the State of Alaska, at its discretion, r€serves the right to perform the warranty work and be
reimbursed by the vendor. lf travel is roquired by State personnel to perform the work, actual
costs will be used for relmbursement.

5.2.2 The State of Alaska has establlshed a warranty procedure whereby the vendor is to be notified
via lettet', email, or fax, that warranly work needs to be performed. lf time is of the essence, a
telephone call confirmed by one of the above written procedures may be utilized.

5.2.3 The vendor must notify the state within 24 hours of verbel or written notification that it will beoin to
oerfornl the warranty work at the equipment location.

5-2.4 The State may, at its discretion, proceed to make warranty repairs with ils own work force in the
case of emergancy situation or to preclude excessive downtime (greater lhan 24 hours). The
State will require a PO to perform the wananty work.

5.2.5 Failure to notify the State that the vendor intends to begin to perform waranty is considered a
contractual breach.

5.2.6 The vendor will be invoiced for required warranty work performed by the state. Warranty work
performed by the state will be charged at the current SEF shop labor rate at the time of the
repair, Actual repair time will be used.

Warranty Performed by Vendor:

5.3,1 The State wíll reimburse travel costs not relmbursed by the manufacturer for travel to and from
the biddeds closest warranty service center within the Strate of Alaska to the location of the
equipment under werrenty. Travel costs wil[ be billed as follows

5.3.1.1 Mileage Charge: Mileage will only be reimbursed for travel within Alaska at the rate
ttowabte by the lRS.

5.3.1.2 Meals are paid at actual and charges must be accompanied by receipts and are not
to exceed the State authorized $00,00 per day,

5"3.1.3 Transportation, such as airfare, shall be reimbursed at actual and all charges are to
be accompanied by a receipt/copy of the coach ticket,

5.3.1.4 Lodging shall be relmbursed at actual and shall not exceed $150,00 per nighl unless
no other fodging is available. Requests for reimbursement must be accompaníed by
a receipt.

5.3.2 Travel will only be reimbursed for time in Alaska.

5.3.3 After hours, weekend and holiday travel must þe approved by the contracting officer lo be
considered for relmbursement. The State will not pay for weather delays.

Secfion l- Standard Terms and Conditions
CA190O-14-1 Light Duty Contract

Page 3 of 6



)-o

5.4 Authorlzed Warranty lContrac'tor/Bldder) :

5.4.1 Contractor (bldder) must have Authorized Warranty Dealer lhat has all required llcenses, facilities
and factory certified and trained personnel necèssary to perform the warranty servicing and repaír
work.

Provlde name and address for each Authorized Wananty Dealer for each location.

(.) Alaska Sales and Service

1300 East 5h Avenue Anchorage AK 907-26S7555

Provide contact name and contact information for Wananty Adminlstrator:

O JacobWhite.

907-265-5204

Provide documentation of factory certified and trained personnel:

(') AllTechnicians are GM certified

5.4.2 The ullimale responsibility for warranty lies with the contractor (biddeÐ.

5.4.3 The State resêrves the right to inspect the rivarranty facility and diagnostic equipment prior lo
issuing the Notice of lntent to Award a contract.

5.5 Factory Recall:

5.5.1 Nationwlde factory recall or product update progrems are the responsibility of the vendor and/or
manufacturer. The State wifl âttempt fo bring affected equipment to an authorized repair facility.
However, because of the remoteness of some equÍpment thÍs is not always practicable or
economical. ln such cases, factory recall and modification work will be handled lhe same as
warranty work. Factory recall notices sent to the state should, in addition to serial number,
include model. year. and dealer.

REPAIR ORDERS AND DOCUMENTATION:

6,1 Any work performed by the contractor or approved subcontractor, whether werrenty or any other work on a
piace of equipment purchased under this lTB, will require â copy of the repair order, any invoices showing
parts and commodities including oils and lypes used.

PUBLIGATIONS:

7.1 Paper publications/OEM Owners Manuals are to be received bythe State atthe time of vehicle delivery.
Delivery will not be considered complete until the publicatrons for each unil have been received by the
State of Alaska. Note: Publioations/ OEM Owners Manuals arê requíred to be íncluded with every vehicle
ordered under this contract.

7.1.1 OEM Standard Owner's Manual

1,1.1 Service Bulletins, Etc.: The successful bidder must províde appropriate service
bulletins, fechnical support bulletins, service letters, product support bulletins,
and/or any other information type notifications that are sent out to the vendor or
used by the manufacturer in the maintenance and report of the vehicle,
equipment or attachments being provided. The intent of thrs clause is that the
State of Alaska be provided notificatron of any and all changes or improvemenfs
that may affect the maintenance, reliabifity, longevity, and safety of our
equipment. This information will be provided as soon as possible to person(s) as
noted on the Purchase Order.

STATEMENT OF ORIGIN: The bldder will be required to furnish a Manufacturer's Statement of Origin for
Automotive or Non-Automotive rolling stock for each unit. All such documents shall be delivered with the invoice to:

DOT&PF, HQ State Equipment Fleet
2200 E. 42rÅ

Anchorage, Alaska 99508

Secfion l- Standard Terms and Conditions
CA1g00-1+1 L¡ght Duty Contract

Page 4 of 6

7.0

8.0



9.0 WEIGI{T VERIFIGATION SLIPS: lf required in the issued purchase order, a weight scale ticket of the completed
unit wlll be included with the Statement of Origin.

JO.O INSPECT]ONS:

10.1 The State's inspection of all materials and equipmenl upon delivery is for the sole purpose of identification.
Such inspectlon shall not be construed as final or as acceptance of the materials or equipment if materials
or equipment do not conform to Contract requirements, lf there are any apparent defects in the materials
or equipment at the time of delivery, the State wlll promptly notify the Contractor thereof. Without limiting
any other rights of the State, The State at its optlon, mgy require the Contractor to:

10.1.1 Repair or replace at Contractor's expensê, eny or all of the damaged goods,

10.1.2 refund the price of any or all of the damaged goods, or

10.1.3 accept thê return of any or all of the damaged goods.

1O.2 Costs of remedying all defects. indirecl and consequentlal costs of correcting seme, andlor removing or
replacing any or all of the defective materials or equipment will be charged against the Bidder.

t1.0 PRIGE:

11.1 Price Guarantee: The Contractor is responsible to maintain prices under the contract flrm for current
model year after bid opening. All price increases or decreases must remaln flrm for the following model
year.

11.2 NO RETROACTIVE PRICE INCREASES WILL BE ACCEPTED.

11.3 Price adjustments, increases or decreasesi for subsequent otders, rnay ba made by providing the
Conhacting Officer satisfactory evidence that all of the following condltions exst:

11.3.1 The íncrease is a rEsult of the increased cost at the manufacture/s level and not costs under the
contracto/s control, and that;

11.3.1.1 The increase will not produce a higher proflt rnargin for the contractor than that on the
oríginal contract, and that;

11.3.1.2 The increase affects only the item(s) that are clearly identified by the contractor,

11.3.1.3 Satisfactory forms of the evidence of the above facts may include a certified invoice
from the manufacturer, or an affidavit from an lndependent professional price-tracking
firm that iä recognized by the industry as reputableand knowledgeable, The
cnntractor must be able to show the difference between the prior yeais price and the
current difference in the price being requested.

11,4 Price Decreases: During the period of the contract, the Contractor must pass on to the state all price
decreases, such aE fleEt rebates. A Contractois failure to adhere strictly and faithfully to this clause will be
considered a material breach of contract. The state reseruos the right to cancel the contract if the
contactor fails to properly perform the duties set out herein.

11.5 Manufacturer's Rebate(lncentlves):

11.5.1 ln any circumstance during or.prior to completion of the contract, whereupon the State of Alaska
becomes eligible 1o receive a rebate for any vehicle purchased under this conlract, it shall be the
BIDDER'S responsibility lo inform the Contracting officer in writing and to advise the procedures
for obtaining such rebates,

72.0 REPLACEMENT PARTS AND REPAIRS:

12.1 This contract encompasses a full parls and labor oontract for manufacturer parts and repairs for the entire
warranty period.

12.2 The State of Alaska shall expect the dealer or manufacturer to provide replacement wear parts at their
authorized warranty facilities for the entire warranty perìod within seven (7) days of order. All olher parts
must be available within ten (10) working da¡æ,

12.3 Back order procedures: Back orders are aereptable; however, the ordering shop shall be appraised at time
of original orders as to the expected delay in delivery.

Secfion l- Standard Terms and Cond[tlons
C41900-14-1 Light Duty Contract

Page 5 of 6



12.4 Warranty: All products supplied by the contrac'tor shalf be warranted against defects in materials and
workmanship for a minimum of 90 days, commencing at the time of installation as long as the installation is
within 12 months of purchase. The cost of any defective product and the labor required to replace the
defective product shall be the obllgatÌon of the contractor.

12.4.1 lf the manufacturer's warranty exceeds the stated wananty then manufac,turer's warranty
supersedes.

12,4.2 Parts Return: Within 12 months of the invoice date, the State is to be allowed to return new parts
with full refund, less actual shipping charges. Gores returned Wlthin 12 months of oriqinal
i,nvolce date wlll recaive full core.credlt. Returned parts will be in new, resellable condition.
Refund will be in the form of a credilinvone cedited to the SOA account with the vendor.

12.4.3 lnvoicing: Futl description of item is requíred on all invoices, packing lists and billings,

Secüon l- Standard Terms and Conditions
CAl 90A^1 4-1 Light Duty Contract

Page 6 of 6



sEcTloN ll
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1.0 ACCESSORIES: When accessorfes are supplied, they must be certified to be compatible with the rest of the
equipment. Certification will be written evidence sâtisfactory to thê State that the accessories are compatlble. The
bÍdder's failure to supply this evidence within the time required by the State will cause the Stäte to consider the bid
non-responsive and reject the bid.

2.0 ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS: The State reserves the righl to add or delete items, agencies or locations as
determined to be in the best ínterest of the State. Added items, agencies or locations will be related to those on
conlract and will not represent a signlficant increase or decrease in size or scope of the contract. Such additions or
deletions wi[f be documented via mutual agreement, wlll be at prlces consistent with the original bid price margins,
and will be evidenced by issuance of a written contract change notice from the Contracting officer.

3.0 ALTERATIONS: The contractor must obtain the written approval from lhe contracting officer prior to making any
alterations to the specifications contained in this lTB. The State will not pay lor alteratlons that are not approved in
advance and in writing by the contracting officer.

4,0 AMENDMENTS: Contract terms shall not be waived, altered, modifìed, supplemented or amended without prior
written approval of the Contracling officer.

5.0 BILLING INSTRUCT¡ONS: lnvoices must be billed to the orderlng agency's addrese shown on the individual
Purchase Order, Contract Award or Delivery Order, not to the Division of General Services. The ordering agsncy
will make payment after it receives the merchandise or service and the invoice. Questions concerning payment
must be addressed to the ordering agency.

6.0 BRAND AND MODEL OFFERËD: Unless othen¡vise specified, when brand names and model numbers are used
to specifo the type and quality of the goods desired, bidders musl clearly indicate tha brand names and model
numbers they inlend to provide. The bidder's failure to identifu the brand and model offered will cause thê State to
conslder the offer non-responsive and reject the bid.

7.0 CERTIFICATION OF GOMPLIANCE W]TH AMERICAN'S WITH DISABIL]TIES ACT OF IgOO:

7.1 By signature of their bidiproposal the bidder/proposer certifies that they comply with the American's with
DÍsabilities Act of 1990 and the regulations issued there under by the federal government.

7,2 Services or actÍvities furnished to the general public on behalf of the State must be fully accessible. This is
intended to ensure that agencies are in accordance with 28 GFR Part 35 Section 35.130 and that services,
programs or activitÍes furnished to the public through a contract do not subject qualified individuals with a
disability to discrfmination based on the disabÌlity,

8.0 COMPLIANCE WlTl'i ALL GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS: The bidder must comply with all applicable federal,
state, and borough regulations, codes, and laws, and pay all applicable federal, state, and borough taxes, and is
liable for all required tnsurance, licenses, permits, and bonds. Failure to comply with such requirements shall
constitute a breach of contract and shall be grounds for contract cancellation. Damages or costs resulting from
noncompliance shall be the sole responsibility of the bidder

9.0 CONFLICT OF INTEREST: An offieær or employee of the State of Alaska may not seek to acqúire, be a party to, or
possess a financial interest in, this contract if (1) the offber or employee is an employee of the admínistrative unit
that supervises the award of this contract; or (2) the officer or employee has the power to take or withhold official
action so as to affect the award or execution of the contract,

10.0 GONTINUING OBLIGATION OF CONTRACTOR: Notwithstanding the expiration dete of a contract resulting from
this ITB, the contractor is obligated to fulfill its responsibilities until warranty, guaranlee, maintenance and parts
avai labil ity requirements have com pletel y exp ired.

11.0 CONTRAGT ADMINISTRATION: The administration of thÌs contract, including any/all changes, is the
responsibility of the Contracting Officer, HQ State Equipment Fteet.

CONTRACT EXTENSION: Unless otherwlse províded in this lTB, the State and the successful bidder/contractor
agree: (1) that any holding over of the contract excluding any exercised renewal options, will be considered as a
month-to-month extension, and alf other terms and conditions shall remain in fullforce and effect and (2) to provide
written notice to the other party of the intent to cancel such month-to-month extension at least thirty (30) daya
before the desired date of cancellation.

12.0

13.0 GONTRACT FUNDING: Bidders are advised that funds are available for the initial purchase and/or the first term of

Secfion ll- Standard Terms and Conditions
CA1g00-14-1 Light Duty Contract

Page 1 of 4



SECTION II
STANDARD TERMS AND CÕNDITIONS

the contract. Payment and performance obligations for succeeding purchases and/or additional terms of the
contract are subject to the availability and appropriation of funds.

14.0 DEFAULT: ln case of bidder default, the Stale may procure the goods or services from another source and hold

the bidder responsible for any resultrng excess costs and may seek other remedies under law or equity. Alaska
Statutes and Regulatrons provide for suspension and disbarment of non-responsible bldders.

15.0 DELIVERY: All deliveries shall be F.O.B final destination point wíth alltransportation and handling charges paid

by bidder. Responsibility and liability for loss or damage shall remain wilh bidder until final inspection and
acceptance when responsibility shall pass to the State except as to latent defects, fraud and bidder's warranty
obligations.

16.0 DISPUTES: Any dispute arising out of this agreement shall be resolved under the laws of Alaska. Any appeal of an
administrative order or any original action to enforce any provision of this egreêment or to obtain any relief from or
remedy in connection with thrs agreement may be brought only in the superior court for the State of Alaska.

17.0 FORCE MAJEURE (lmpossibility to perform); Neither party to this contract shall be held responsible for delay or
default caused by acts of God and/or war, whrch is beyond that part/s reasonable control. The Stafe may
terminate this coniract upon written notice after determining such delay or default will reasonably prevent
successful performance of the contract-

I8,O HUMAT{ TRAFFIGKING:

18.1 By signature on this contract, the offeror certifies that:

18.J.1 the offeror is not established and headquartered or incorporated and headquartered, in a oountry
recognized as Tier 3 in the most recent United States Department of State's Trafficking in
Persons Report; or

18.2 The most recent United States Department of State's Trafficking in Persons Report can be found at the
following webeite: þflMe.Sb.te.gqWg4ld

18.3 Failure to eomply with this requirement will cause the state to reject the bid or proposal as non-responsive,
or cancel the contract.

18.4 This pertains to goods and services above $50,000.00.

19.0 INDEMNIFICATIOFT{: The Contractor shall lndemnify, hold harmless, and defend the contracting agency from and
against any claim of, or liabitity for êrror, omission or negligent act of the Contractor under this agreement. The
Contractor shall not be required to indemnify the contracting agency for a claim of, or liability for, the independent
negligence of the contracting agency, lf there is a claim of, or liability for, the joint negligent error or omssion of the
Contractor and the independent negligence of the Contracting agency, the indemnification and hold harmless
obligation shall be apportioned on a comparative fault basis. "Contractor" and "Contracting agenct'', as used within
this and the followíng arlicle, include the employees, agents and other contractors who are directly responsible,
respectively, to each. The term "independent negligence" is negligence other than in the Contracting agency's
selection, administration, monitoring, or controlling of the Contractor and in approving or accepting the Contracto/s
work.

20.0 INSPECT¡ÕNS: Goods furnished under this contract are subject to inspection and test by the State at llmes and
places determined by the State. lf the State finds goods furnished to be incomplete or nol in compliance with bid
specifications, the State may reject the goods and require bdder to either correct them without charge or deliver
thern ât a reduced price, which ie equitable under the circumstiances. lf bidder is unable or refuses to correct such
goods within a time deemed reasonable by the State, the State may cancelthe order in whole or in part. Nothing in
this paragraph shall adversely affect the State's rights as buyer, including all remedies and rÍghts granted by Alaska
stalutes.

21.0 TNSURANCË:

2'l.1 Without limíting Contractor's indemnification, it is agreed that Contractor shall purchase at its own sxpense
and maintain in force at all times during the performance of services under this agreement the followlng
policies of insurance. Where specific limits are shown, it is understood that they shall be the minimum
ac.ceptable limits. lf the Contraclor"s policy contains higher limits, lhe state shall be entitled to coverage to
the extent of such higher limits. Certificates of lnsurance must be furnished to the contracting officer prlor
to beginning work and must provide for a notice of cancellation, non-renewal, or material change of

Secfion lb Standard Terms and Conditions
CA1900-14-1 Light Duty Contract

Page 2 of 4



sEcTroN il
STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

21.2

21.3

conditions in accordance with policy provisions. Failure to furnish satísfactory evidence of insurance or
lapse of the policy is a material breach of this contract and shall be grounds for termlnatlon of the
Contractor's services. All insurance policies shall comply with, and be issued by ínsurers licensed to
transact the business of insurance under AS 21 .

Froof of insurance is required for the following:

21.2.1 Woügrs' Compe"nsatien lnsurance: The Contractor shall provide and rnaintain, for all employees
engaged in work under this contract, coverage as required by AS 23.30.045, and; where
applicable, any other stätutory obligatrons including but nol limited to Federal U.S,L. & H. and
Jones Act requirements. The policy must waive subrogation against the State.

21.2.2 Cqmmereialgeneral Liabilitv lnsurance: covering all business premises and operations used by
the Contractor in lhe performance of services under this agreement with minimum coverage fimits
of $3t0,000 combined single limit per occurrence.

21.2.3 : covering all vehiclee used by the Gontractor in the
performance of services under this agreement with minimum coverage limits of $300,000
combined single limit per occunence.

Failure to supply satisfactory proof of insurance within the time required will cause the State lo dedare the
bidder nonresponsive and to reject the bid.

22-0

23.0

24.0

25.0

26.0

27.0

28.0

29.0

io.o

ITEM UPGRADES: The State resêrves the right to acc€pt upgrades to models on the basp contract when the
upgrades improve the way the equipment operales or improve lhe accuracy of the equipment. Such upgraded
items must be al the sarne price as the items in the basic contract.

NEW EQt!!PMENT; Ëquipment offered in this contract must be new equipment. New equipment means equipment
that is currently in production by the manufacturer and is stlll the latest model, edition or version generally offered.
The equipment must be warranted as new by the manufacturer and may not have been used for any purpose, other
than dlsplay (not demonstration), prior lo its sale to the State, The State will not accept remanufactured, used or
reconditioned equipment, including used or reconditioned components or parts of. lt is the contractor's
responsibility to ensure that each piece of equipment delivered to the State complies with this requirement. A
contract's faiiure to comply with this requirement will cause thê Statê to seek remedies under breach of contract.

ORDER ÞOCUIUENTS: Except as specifically allowed under this contract, an orderlng agency will not sign any
vendor c¡ntract. The State is not bound by a vendor contract signed by a person who is not specifically authorized
to sign for the State under this lTB. The State of Alaska Purchase Order, Contract Award and Delivery Order are
the only order documents that may be used to place orders against the contract(s) resultlng from this lTB.

PAYMENT: Payment for agreements under $500,000 for the undisputed purchase of goods or services provided
to a State âgency will be made within 30 dayns of the receipt of a proper billing or the delivery of the goods or
services to the location(s) specified in the agreement, whichever is later. A late payment ls subject to 1,5% interest
per month on the unpaid balance" lnterest will not be paid if there is a dispute or if lhere is an agreement, which
estabfishes a lower rnterest rate or precludes the charging of interest.

PRICES; The bidder shall state prices according to the requirements of this lTB. Prices quotd for commodities or
servicaç must be in U.S. funds and inctude applicable federal duty, brokerage fees. packaging, and transportation
cost to the FOB point so that upon transfer of title the commodity or servic,e can be utilized without further cost.

QUANT¡TIES: The State reserves the right to reduce or increase the quantity of items ordered under any contract
resulting from this lnvitation io Bid.

SEVERABItITY: lf any provision of the contract is declared by a coqrt to be illegal or in conflict with any law, the
valldlty of the remaining terms and provisions will not be affested; and, the rights and obligations of the parties will
be construed and enforced as if the c¿ntract did not contain the particular provision hald to be invalid.

SH¡PPING D,4ññAGË: The State will not accept or pay for damaged goods. The contractor must file all claims
against the carrier(s) for damages incurred to items in transit from the point of origin to the ultimate destination,
The State will provide the contractor with written notice when damaged goods are received.

STANDARD AND SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS: The terms and conditions of thls sectlon are standard to
Stale of ,Alaska, Departmeni of Transportation and Public Facilities, Statewide Equipment Fleet contracts for the
purchase of 6oods. There may also be other special terms and conditions in an lnvitation to Bld or Request for

Sacffor ll- Standard lerms and Conditions
CAÍ90A44-1 Light Duty Contract

Page 3 of 4



SECTION II

STANDARD TËRMS AND CONDITIONS

Proposal which apply only to this contract. ln the event of a conflicl between the standard and special terms and
conditions, the SpeeíalTerms and Conditions take precedence.

Jl.0 SUBCONTRACTOR{$}: Within five (5) working days of notice, the apparent low bidder must submit a list of the
subcontractors that will be used in the performancæ of the contract. The list must include the name of each
subcontrâctor and the location of the place of business for each subcontraclor and evidence of each
subcontractor's valid Alaska business license. Subconlrac'tors Gan only be changed per AS 36.30.1 15 (b).

32.0

33.0

34.0

35.0

SUCCESSORS ll{ ENTEREST: This contract shall be binding upon successors and assigns.

SUITABLE MATERIALS: All mâterials, supplies or equipment offered by a bidder shall be new, unused, of recent
manufacture, and suitable for the manufacturer's intended purpose unless the specificatiohs allow for used, rebuilt
or remanufactured equipment.

TAXES: Prices quoted in bids must be exclusive of federal, state, and local taxes. lf the bidder believes that
certain taxes ârê payable by the $tâte, the bidder may list such taxes separately, directly below the bid price for the
affected itern, The State is exempt frorn Federal Excise Tax because artioles purchased are for the exclusive use
of the State of Alaska,

WARRANTY: Unless otherwise stated, all equipment shall be new and current model and shall carry full factory
warranties. Bidder warrânfs all goods delivered to be ftee from defects in labor, material and manufacture and to
be in compliance with bid specifications. All implied or expressed warranty provisions of the Uniform Commercial
Code apply, All warnanties shall be for and benefit lhe State-

Secfion ll- Standard Terms and Conditions
CA1900-14-1 Llght Duty Contract

Page 4 of 4



SECTION ¡I'
SPECIFICATIONS

SPECIFICATIONS

Minirnum Requirements to be included on allvehlcles:

-ires: all season, sta for GWVR, with spare tire and wheelassembly
Io include full size spare tire and wheel when available, or space saver required by manufacture

Secflon I I l- Specifications
CA1900-14-1 Light Duty Contract

Page 1 of 2

Color: OEM White (Any other color requires prior authorization)

Darkest of OEM Manufactures Standard Cloth Upholstery lnterior, (cloth or cloth with viny4 trim would be acceptable)

Transmission: Automatic with overdrive where available (manufactures recommended with engine selected)

Yz lon and Larger Rated Vehlcles to Have Llmlted Slip or Locking Differenfial (automatlc or driver controlled)

OEM Trailer Receiver Hitch Package to be lncluded on all plckups % ton rated and larger (Exceptlon: chassis only do
not reouired receiver hitches, all chassis to have trailer wirina to the rear of chassis)
Up-fitter Switches OEM on all % ton rated and larger pickup's and chassis

Spray ln Bed Liners (black in color) to be OEM or Dealer lnstalled onallYz ton rated and larger pickup beds

OEM Front Tow Hooks (frame mounted) to be included on all 3/4 ton rated and larger pickup's and chassis

ABS Brakes (4 WheelAnti-Lock)

Power Steering

AM/FM Stereo

One Electric Power Port 12 Volt - Minimum

Daytrme running lights to be included on all vehicle classes where available

Engine Block l'leater with 3 Prong plug secured and accessible from the f¡ont grill or bumper area

Anti-Freeze-Long Life Coolant to a minimum -35 degree protection

Vehicle Keys (4) AS REQUIRED PER DEFINITION TAB

Gas tank must be no less than % full when delivered to State receiving facility
FOB Anchorage (Unless otherwise noted)

All available options are to be OEM lnstalled when available with the exception of auto starts and

, as a mandatory requirement must be OEM lnstalled un
which

spray in bed liners
be instal at dealer

Allitems class requirements

All items listed and advertised by the manufacture as standard equipment shall be induded on all vehicles

ARO on all units is 180 days.



SECTION lII
SPECIFICATIONS

BACK UP CAMERÄ: OEM backr¡o cåfiËra svstem

OEM HANDS F-B¡#.COllÄtUNlCATlOl{ SYSTEftft Systern b be OEM and include all requiréd componenb or ûËnufactures required psc,kæes ùc be
all¡nmnalihh ì¡llh mst tminr ron¡ rfacfi rr¡c all¡ rl¡r ¡lcví¡ac

CENTER GoNSOLE: lncludes console !ìiilh cup holders, hey compartnent and a comoarünent door. lf al'sllable,

1/2 þn through 'l ton plckups and chas6i6 are r€qulred tl llå,ö a lln{bd sllp áf€ or locklng dlffercnllel (can be
autcnElic or drivÞr conÞolled) in the minim;m requ¡renpnb. lf a linited slip a)de or locklng dlfierential is not av€¡labþ your bld wlll b€ conôiderêd non
compliant.

OPTIONAL EAUIPMENT: A list of equipment Ûrat üre Sbte mey choosð b add b an indlvidual v€hícl€, in addllion or ln place of the Required
Egulpmeñl Vendors are required to proúde pricing lor âll Optional Êquipmant lf ar¿ailable, All equipnnnt shall be Þctcry lnsÞlled unless speçlned ¡n
his documont.

PICKUP BOX I.E¡¡GIIû The fojlowing definifions perÞin b all pickup buck configuratlons Isbd ürrougthout ûre bid.
Short Bed - Shortest pickup bed offer€d by üìe manufâchlrer
Stand¡rd Bed - Bed shall be no shorter üran 6ft and no longer han 7ft in lengür nreasured at üe bed lloor inside üre box
Lons Bed - Lonqe:Þ! Þed qre1]eÞle ûqm he manufacturer

REOUIRED EAUPTIËF{TI The minimum llst of options
facbry ¡nsûalled unless sBecified ¡n h¡s doÇurîent.

lhat shall be included for all ræhlcles for hat speclllc B¡d lþm Number. All equlprnent shall be

SPRAY lN BED UNËR , OEM or deabr installed spray in bed liner is required
spray ln bed liners are b be black in cobr and har¡e a minimum h¡cknesÊ of Ji6 (0.1875) inch.

lnstallatbn: Oêr rait sfyle, interior taiþate, and front bed rruall insblþlion is required. Frceptior - fucks r,r,lür facbry plaslic or meEl pickup box lop rail
prqÞgü)rs shall rennin in pþce, on tt€se fucke under-rail style insbllation shâi b€ ussd.

$tability tont"ol syst€nÉ ar€ not an accephblg subs{tub fur a limibd sllp a¡de or facdm confol sygbm. Elecüonic
sbblllty conüol (ÊSC) ¡s a conìpÉ€r¡zed technology that ¡mpro\,res ùê safety of a !€hicle's sbbiflty by deÈc{ng and mlnlmizlng sklds.

Traclon conlrol sysbms are notån accepbble substihJte for s llmibd s[p alde or bcking dtñerenüal. Tracüon c¡ntolTRACTION CO¡ITRQLËFIEM:
is a coørpubrized technobgy thal utilizes he whicles brake and engine to assist in contolllng wtreel spin ebtsonically.

shallGlass darl.crbe ñ€hân etandard windowti offerednt üreand a\Ælhbledarkeet he nìanufåctureOEM €achforpfo\¡ded by
Aü vu'ndows lheminus sndwindrhield stde shallwido'!s co\æfgd.bedriwr/passenger and irxsÞll€d ¡sfacbryOnly supplied pn\acy glass

Ësch rchisþ shsll be supplied witr four facmry keys. All keys ånd ûán$r¡tbrs shall be fu|y prograrmed, cut, and/gr cr€d€nlial€d
inb s€cur¡ty system.

All 4)<4 vËh¡cles shall come equiÞpêd with a low range fansfer case oplion. The brque dlsùlbuüon shall be drhÆr sêþcEUe. When üre ræHcle is in
4x4 nnde' boÛ¡ front and !'ear äres shafl hår,e porrrær. All 4x4 tehicþs shall corne equlpped wlh eþcfonlc fansfer case shift e,onEolwith aub lockl ns

ALL WHEEL DRIVE tÀWD[: All Wheel Drhe whicles do not require â low rar4€ bansfur case optlon and ar6 not requ¡red b be dri\,€r selachbl€.

The following pickup buck câb conl¡gurat¡ons sñall be used throughoutfie bid
Gab - Sealing for at least tr,ro or lhree occupants, tu,o êab doors

Cab - Four cab doors, including second row seating.
Csb - Four full size cab doors. Largest cab cÕnf¡gurâlion offered ($<cept Dodge Megu Cab)

of extended c& plckup trucks E¡<ampfes of crew cab pickup trucks
Fotd rt bn and larger = Sup€r Cre!ìdCrew Cab
All GM pickup brnks = GrewCab
FÞm%ton=CrswCab
Ram % ücn and hrger = Creü, Cab

Ford pickup trucks = Super Cab
}á bn = Quad Cab

ëm1Áþn and larger = Crew Cab
GM pickup trucks = Double Cab

The following itens are requirôd in this package, Mlnimum 5.0 llbr Englne, 220 amp âlbrnabr, cloúr 4o/Blank/4o hont
Vinyl Rear Bânch Seát

SecÉion I I l- Specífications
CA1900-14-1 Ltght Duty Contract

Page 2 of 2

with cenbr secüon delebd,



SECTION IV
BID PRICE SCHEDULE

BID SCHEDI.ILE !NSTRI"¡ETIONS:

\ll bids must include both unít pricing and extensions and be otherwise cnmplete in lhe format requested,

The materials, equipmenl or services bid will conform to and meet the requirements of the Contract Bid Documents and

are hereby incorporäted into this document.

Publications: One (f ) set, per Section ã, paragraph 7.0.

The actual F-0.Ë, point fa:r all items purehased under this contrâct shall be Anchoragq Fairbanks, or Juneau Alaska.
Ownership of and titfe ts the ordered items remains with the contractor until the items have been delivered at their final
destination and are accepted by the State.
For pricing purposes of this contract, the F.O.B, point is Anchorage Alaska

REQUIRED DËLIVERY ül- : Maximum 180 days after receípt of order (ARO).

Attachment on File as Subrnitted by Vendors:

Spreadsheet "Amendment 2 SEF-1900 Light Duty Bidder Worksheet.xls"

Section lV- Bid Price Schedule
C41900-14-1 Light Duty Contract

Page I of I



City of North Pole, Alaska

Fiscal Note Year: zors

Accompanying Ordinance/Resolution #: Ordinance 1 5-04

Originator / Sponsor Name: Chief Steve Dutra

Date: 2^12-15

Does the Ordinance or Resolution have a fiscal impact? Ø y.t no

Summary: (Brief description of proposed alterations as defined by accompanying
ordinance or resolution. Where did the money come from and how will it be used).

The North Pole Police will purchase a detective/crime scene investigation vehicle using
funds from Justice forfeiture. The purchase is for $35,410.00 and will buy a 2014-15
Chevrolet Tahoe. This vehicle will be multi purpose nature. lt will be used for crime
scene investigations and undercover operations.

Prepared By: Date:2-12-15

Finance Approval ate:2-/ Z-/S

NOTE- Fiscal notes attached to an ordinance are considered amendments to the budget and do
not require an additional approval for insertion into the budget document.

Fund- Dept.

Title

Account Description Account # Debit Credit

Fund 21 ABADE - DEPT ofJustice Revenue 21-00-00-5900 $35,410.00

ABADE - DEPT of Juslice Expense 21-00-00-7001 $35,410.00


	AG-02-17-15
	Committee of the Whole – 6:30 p.m.  Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 p.m.
	9.   Ongoing Projects Report
	Alaska
	Regular City Council Meeting
	Tuesday, February 17, 2015


	Min-02-02-15
	Ord 15-01 Marijuana hash oil cooking prohibited 
	Ord 15-02 Marijuana use in public places
	Sale of SDEU Vehicle from NPPD
	NPEDC Bed Tax Request for 4th Qtr 2014
	Memo 2-11-15 IT services
	To:
	From:
	cc:
	Date:
	Re:

	Request to Purchase Detective Vehicle
	2015 committees
	Sheet1

	Ord 15-03 Step increases (1st full pay period)
	Ord 15-04 Requesting to Purchase a Vehicle

